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1. Performance report 
1.1. Overview 
 
1.1.1. Statement from the Clinical Chair and Interim Chief Officer  

Welcome to NHS North Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group’s (CCG) 2015/16 annual 
report. 
 
We work together with our partners to deliver high-quality care and we are responsible for 
commissioning the planning and buying of the majority of health services for people across 
North Tyneside. As a clinically-led membership organisation, made up of the 29 GP 
practices in North Tyneside, we are in a unique position to understand the needs of our 
patients and to drive improvement in the delivery of high-quality services. 
 
This year we have faced a particularly challenging year and we have continued to warn of 
the severe pressure on the local NHS budget and to forecast a deficit of £19.3m for 
2015/16.  Throughout the year we have been proactive by working with our GP practices 
and partners to develop a financial recovery plan to achieve financial balance, whilst still 
maintaining care for patients. 
 
Despite a very challenging financial situation, we feel that we have a strong position on 
high-quality, safe, patient-centred care. We perform well in the vast majority of NHS 
constitution standards and we’re developing an integrated care programme with North 
Tyneside Council that is being overseen by the North Tyneside Health and Wellbeing 
Board. These programmes, which include a commitment to deliver ‘New Models of Care’ 
(North Tyneside Care Plus), are based on examples from successful USA approaches and 
are showing positive early results. 
 
We have also been working to improve urgent care services in North Tyneside following 
the opening of the Northumbria Specialist Emergency Care Hospital in Cramlington in 
June 2015. Patients have been telling us that the most important factors when choosing 
which urgent and emergency care services to use are seeing the right health professional, 
location of service, seeing someone on the same day and making an appointment at a 
convenient time. As a result, we launched a formal consultation with four different 
scenarios in October 2015. The consultation finished in January 2016, with the CCG due 
to make a decision in summer of 2016. 
 
In additional to this, we are also part of the Urgent and Emergency Care Vanguard, with 
other NHS organisations within the North East. It’s still early days but this will mean that 
we can provide the same level of care throughout the region and will improve care to meet 
the diverse needs of the population of the North East. 
 
We would like to recognise the excellent work of the North Tyneside CCG Patient Forum. 
It helps us to play a key role in keeping patient and public engagement at the heart of 
everything that we do. Its work has also been recognised at the Age Takes Centre Stage 
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Award which is a great achievement. Other work that they have been involved in includes 
working with older people, self-care and supporting improvements to end of life care. 
 
In North Tyneside, we do have excellent healthcare services but we need to look again at 
how we do this whilst making the best use of resources. This is why we are exploring the 
Accountable Care Organisation model and seeing how it could work for North Tyneside.  
 
Looking forward, we need to plan how we can deliver a sustainable healthcare system in 
North Tyneside and how we all work together to maximise the health and wellbeing of 
North Tyneside communities by making the best use of resources.  
 
There is significant work underway to improve health and care in North Tyneside. Like 
many other parts of the country, the local NHS in North Tyneside is coming together with 
wider health and care partners to agree a vision for how services can deliver care which is 
more joined up and, crucially, which focuses on helping local people to stay healthy and 
well. Throughout 2016 we will be working closely with North Tyneside Council, which is 
responsible for adult social care and public health services, and all our local NHS partners 
to focus on the three big challenges which are facing local health and care across the 
country. This includes improving health and wellbeing, improving care and quality, and 
improving system efficiency.  
 
Finally, we would like to take this opportunity to thank our partners, member practices and 
patients for all their hard work throughout 2015/16. We would also like to thank Maurya 
Cushlow for all her work as the Chief Officer of North Tyneside CCG from its inception and 
throughout its first three years to March 2016, when she left the CCG to take up the post of 
Executive Director of Nursing and Midwifery at North Cumbria University Hospitals NHS 
Trust.  
 
We look forward to continuing to work with you all. 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
Dr John Matthews     Jim Hayburn 
Clinical Chair       Interim Chief Officer 
24 May 2016      24 May 2016  
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Preparation of accounts 
 
The accounts included in this document have been prepared under a Direction issued by 
the NHS Commissioning Board under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended). 
The accounts have been prepared on the basis that the CCG is a ‘going concern’, despite 
the issue in February 2016 of a report to the Secretary of State for Health under Section 
30 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 for the anticipated breach of financial 
duties, as indicated in the notes to the accounts. Public sector bodies are assumed to be 
going concerns where the continuation of the provision of a service in the future is 
anticipated, as evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that service in public 
documents.  
 
 
 
 
Dr John Matthews     Jim Hayburn 
Clinical Chair       Interim Chief Officer 
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1.1.2. About NHS North Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group 

North Tyneside CCG has overall responsibility for the development and planning of 
healthcare services for the borough. All 29 GP practices in North Tyneside are members of 
the CCG, supported by healthcare professionals and managers. 
 
The vision of the CCG is: 
“Working together to maximise the health and wellbeing of North Tyneside communities by 
making the best possible use of resources.” 
 
This is supported by strategic principles which include: 

• High-quality care that is safe, effective and focused on patient experience  

• Services coordinated around the needs and preferences of our patients, carers and 
their families 

• Transformation in the delivery of health and wellbeing services provided jointly with 
the local authority, other public sector organisations and the private and voluntary 
sector 

• Best value for taxpayers’ money and using resources responsibly and fairly 

• Right services in the right place delivering the right outcomes 

 
Corporate objectives were set for 2015/16:  

• Commission high quality care for patients, that is safe, value for money and in line 
with the NHS Constitution 

• Develop and grow North Tyneside CCG as a patient focused, clinically led 
commissioning organisation 

• Deliver year one of the Financial Recovery Plan, leading to sustainable financial 
balance and delivery of the CCG’s statutory financial duties 

• Work collaboratively with partners and stakeholders to be responsive to the 
population of North Tyneside 

• Lead and influence the development of health and social care fit for the future 

 
The corporate objectives have been reviewed for 2016/17.  
 
1.1.3. Overview of North Tyneside 

North Tyneside is located on the North East coast and includes the coastal areas of 
Whitley Bay, Cullercoats and Tynemouth and the towns of North Shields and Wallsend. 
Many of the communities have a history of industrial development including shipbuilding, 
fishing and coal mining. 
 
The 2016/17 North Tyneside CCG population is 218,064 and is expected to grow by 
0.60% annually, to 223,262 by 2020/21 (population figures provided by NHS England).  It 
has an increasingly ageing population.  
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The borough of North Tyneside as a whole is now one of the least deprived areas in the 
North East of England. Also, people are living longer with the average life expectancy for 
North Tyneside being 79 years (77 years for males and 81 for females).  
 
The principal cause of premature death in North Tyneside is cancer, followed by 
cardiovascular disease (CVD). Smoking is the major cause of preventable death, with 
alcohol misuse the second biggest lifestyle health risk factor.  
 
Over a quarter of all adults in North Tyneside are estimated to be obese, which is a key 
risk factor for diabetes. With an increasing prevalence of obesity, the number of people in 
North Tyneside with Type 2 diabetes is on the increase. 
 
In summary, the challenges within North Tyneside include: 

• Ageing population with increasing needs 

• Health inequalities between localities 

• Increasing over reliance on hospital-based services 

• Increasing high cost drugs and cost of new medical technologies  

• Minimal growth in financial allocations and funding shift to social and primary care 

 
This range of health issues is reflected nationally, with increasing long-term conditions, 
increasing costs and increasing public expectation. The NHS Five Year Forward View 
highlights the need for the NHS to lead where possible, or advocate when appropriate, a 
range of new approaches to improving health and wellbeing and self-care and this has 
been incorporated into the CCG’s commissioning priorities for 2015/16 and 2016/17. 
 
 
1.1.4. Commissioning priorities for 2015/16 

The CCG’s strategic vision is set out in section 1.1.2 and is supported by ambitious plans 
to change the way that care is delivered by 2018. Along with partners, the strategic priority 
themes include: 

• Keeping healthy, self-care 

• Caring for people locally 

• Hospital when it is appropriate 

• Integrating health and social care 

 
The CCG’s priorities for 2015/16 centred around improving the quality of care for patients, 
continuing to modernise local NHS systems and tackling the CCG’s financial deficit, with a 
continued focus on providing: 

• Care for older people 

• High-quality affordable healthcare 

• Urgent care 
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Further information on each of these areas is highlighted in figure one. 
 
Figure 1: CCG priorities for 2015/16 

 
 

Working with the CCG’s wider health and social care providers, the CCG is focusing on a 
number of priorities that will further improve the healthcare outcomes of the local 
population.  
 
During the past 12 months, plans included: 

• Promoting self-care to help people manage their long-term conditions, minor injuries 
and illness more effectively where appropriate 

• Undertaking a listening and engagement exercise regarding the future model of 
urgent care to inform a public consultation process 

• Developing a combined rehabilitation pathway across cardiovascular disease and 
respiratory care that will offer early access to a range of options to meet each 
person’s needs 

• Continuing to improve care at the end of life through a rapid response out-of-hours 
service seven days a week from September and through Macmillan nurse specialist 
support to residential homes 
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• Further developing the ‘My care, my way’ programme for older people, bringing 
together health and social care specialists in the areas of preventative care, 
wellbeing, hospital care and recovery 

• Piloting New Models of Care (now called North Tyneside Care Plus) to improve the 
way in which primary care services work together to coordinate care and eliminate 
waste and duplication 

• Continuing with a shift of mental health services from inpatient care to community 
based provision, with improved quality of care for patients 

• Reviewing the liaison psychiatry pilots established in 2014/15 to inform the future 
models of care for promoting parity of esteem 

 
1.1.5. Financial recovery 

The CCG started the financial year with a target deficit of £14.3m, inclusive of a savings 
target of £9m. However this position changed as the budget review work undertaken over 
the summer identified a number of budget pressures that were not previously accounted 
for. Discussions took place with NHS England mid-year on the expected year-end position. 
The outcome of the discussions led to the forecast agreed year-end position increasing 
from £14.3m deficit to £19.3m deficit, noting that savings of £11.9m would be required to 
deliver that.  
 
The underlying causes have been identified as a combination of issues including an 
increased number of patients attending local hospitals and receiving care which is higher 
than other areas nationally, and a growing elderly population who need additional 
community-based care for complex health needs. 
 
The CCG has been proactive in working with its GP members to develop a financial 
recovery plan, and NHS England is working with the CCG to monitor plans more closely so 
that the CCG can achieve financial balance. 
 
An important part of the solution is to make more use of existing community and primary 
care services and to develop these as an alternative to attending hospital. These changes 
will bring substantial cost savings, but they are a longer-term solution and will take time to 
implement. 
 
it is also important to ensure that patients receive their care by accessing the most 
appropriate services, as opposed to more expensive or inappropriate services. There are 
other schemes which will reduce inefficiency and waste with no or minimal impact on 
patient care. 
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1.1.6. Urgent healthcare delivery 

Urgent healthcare delivery has changed following the opening of the Northumbria 
Specialist Emergency Care Hospital in Cramlington in June 2015. North Tyneside 
residents with serious illnesses or injuries can access services at the new A&E in 
Cramlington or at the Royal Victoria Infirmary A&E in Newcastle. 
 
The CCG has also been working on improving urgent care, initially through pre-
consultation in May 2015 to July 2015 and then a formal consultation in October 2015 to 
January 2016. The overall aim is to develop a successful and lasting model of care which 
supports self-care, provides highly-responsive urgent care services outside hospital so 
people no longer choose to queue in A&E, and helps people with urgent care needs to get 
the right advice or treatment in the right place, first time.  
 
The consultation provided a range of engagement activity that allows different 
stakeholders and groups to get involved in the way that is most suitable to them with all 
methods ensuring that feedback and dialogue, which will then be analysed, is captured. 
This included public meetings, drop-in sessions, surveys, focus groups, roadshows at 
shopping centres and via social media.  
 
Further information including the four different scenarios is available on the CCG website. 
The decision will be made by the CCG in summer of 2016 on the outcome of the 
consultation.  
 
In July 2015, the North East Urgent Care Network (NEUCN) was confirmed as one of eight 
new urgent and emergency care vanguards. The CCG is part of that vanguard. The 
programme is an important part of the NHS Five Year Forward View, which sets out the 
health, quality of care and funding gaps that will open up if the NHS does not change.   
 
1.1.7. North Tyneside Care Plus 

North Tyneside Care Plus (New Models of Care) will deliver NHS care in a different way. 
The aim of this project is to deliver high quality, cost-effective care for the residents of 
North Tyneside. The three main components for doctors and nurses will be to consider 
how to coordinate care, standardise care, and match patients’ need with the care model 
and clinical skills which will make the biggest impact. 
 
In North Tyneside, there are current integration projects taking place such as the Better 
Care Fund, Urgent Care Strategy and Older Persons Pathway which have required 
collaboration across North Tyneside’s health economy. This programme aims to build on 
some of the excellent work already being undertaken, with the common thread throughout 
being: 

• Ensuring that health and social care work more effectively together to deliver 
person-centred care and ensuring that patients tell their story once  
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• Intervening early so that older and disabled people can stay healthy and 
independent at home, plus avoiding unnecessary hospital admissions and reducing 
A&E visits 

• Delivering care that is centred on individual needs, rather than what the system 
wants to provide – social care, NHS and voluntary staff working together, with 
families and carers, to ensure people can leave hospital as soon as they are ready  

• Provision of integrated support to carers so that they don’t feel they are struggling to 
cope alone and can take a break from their caring responsibilities 

 
The Whitley Bay area was identified as the initial launch site following an options 
appraisal, with a full implementation programme taking place from April 2016.  
 
1.1.8. Transforming care for people with learning disabilities 

The Department of Health report, Transforming Care: a national response to Winterbourne 
View Hospital (2014) sets out clear actions, timescales and requirements for CCGs and 
local authorities to work together with providers, individuals and their families to transform 
care and support for people with learning disabilities. 
 
In North Tyneside, work that has been undertaken includes: 

• A national fast-track programme tasked to deliver plans to transform support for 
people with learning disabilities and/or autism over the next three to five years. The 
North East and Cumbria has received £1.4m from the Transformation Fund to 
support the initial implementation of these plans and this will allow all CCGs and 
local authorities the opportunities to accelerate local plans against an ambitious 
timeframe delivering a 50% reduction in admissions to inpatient disability services 
by 2020 

• Patients have been moved from hospital rehabilitation, assessment and treatment 
beds into local community settings where clinically appropriate 

• The CCG continues to work with the local authority and other key partners in 
delivering the work programme as part of NHS England’s Transforming Care 
agenda 

• A North Tyneside Learning Disabilities Board has been set up, which reports 
directly to the Health and Wellbeing Board. This board is leading on the learning 
disability transformation programme in North Tyneside and has oversight of its 
implementation, impact and development 

 

1.1.9. Primary care co-commissioning and working with GP practices 

The purpose of primary care co-commissioning is to enable clinically-led, local solutions in 
response to local Joint Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNAs) and Joint Health and 
Wellbeing strategies. Co-commissioning is one of a series of changes set out in the NHS 
Five Year Forward View, as a key driver in developing seamless, integrated out-of-hospital 
services based around the diverse needs of the local population.  
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NHS England offered all CCGs three different options to be involved in primary care co-
commissioning, effective from April 2015. North Tyneside CCG has implemented joint 
arrangements for primary care co-commissioning with NHS England from April 2015.  
 
1.1.9.1. Development of the GP primary care strategy 

Work is progressing with GP practices and patients to develop the GP primary care 
strategy in order to meet the demands of an increasingly elderly population, GP shortages 
and seven-day working. 
 
The strategy will focus on meeting the current and future healthcare needs of the borough 
with the key areas for review including: 

• Services: integrated and adaptable services aimed at local needs 

• Estates: fit for purpose premises 

• Workforce: well trained, happy workforce, sufficient to meet local needs 

• Technology: up-to-date and innovative equipment and software integrating services 
particularly regarding information 

• Models of Care: a wraparound model, making patients the centre of care. 

• Structure: a clear structure with good communication and cooperation between 
areas 

• Quality: safe and effective care, making the patients’ health care journey as easy 
and fast as possible 

 
1.1.9.2. Primary care support 

The primary care support programme is a fundamental part of how the CCG works with 
GP practices to improve quality in primary care. 
 
The aim of this programme is to coordinate activity and communications so that practices 
are clear about what is required of them to deliver the best possible care to patients. 
 
1.1.9.3. Innovation in GP practices 

The CCG has been piloting apps in three GP practices within North Tyneside, with a 
further four scheduled to go live during 2016. 
 
Using the apps, patients can register with the practice, find the practice if they are new to 
the area, call the practice to arrange appointments or book prescription. Patients can also 
check opening hours, find out when clinicians are available, set calendar reminders for 
appointments and access all online practice information. 
 
The Code4Health team at NHS England is considering rolling out this app nationally. 
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1.1.10. Tackling winter pressures 

Winter is always a busier time for health services and the CCG has ensured that measures 
were put in place to meet the additional demand. 
 
The CCG invested in additional primary care capacity to manage pressures over the 
Christmas period. This included additional cover at Rake Lane and Battle Hill walk-in 
centres, which were open throughout the holiday period. In addition, two local practices 
operated as primary care hubs for the whole borough on 26-28 December when many 
practices were closed. The CCG also teamed up with Northumberland CCG and put in 
place a local advertising campaign using radio, online and print media to help patients use 
services appropriately over the holiday period.  
 
The CCG also supported the national ‘Stay Well This Winter’ campaign implemented by 
NHS England and Public Health England, with advertising and promotional activity taking 
place throughout winter. This campaign encouraged people to prepare for common winter 
ailments which can be easily treated at home or with advice from a pharmacist – keeping 
valuable appointments with doctors and nurses open for those who really need them. 
 
1.1.11. Public engagement 

Public engagement is at the heart of everything the CCG does. The CCG patient forum is 
a key part of this. Further information on patient and public engagement can also be found 
in section 1.3.3. 
 
In summary, public engagement and consultation throughout the year has included: 

• Experience of older people’s mental health care to understand what is important to 
patients, service users, carers and families to start to make improvements  

• Changes to prescribing including stopping funding some gluten-free food, and 
reviewing the use of and prescribing across the borough 

• Initial work for the GP primary care strategy and asking patients for their opinions of 
their GP practice 

• Urgent care pre-engagement and consultation – the CCG wants to provide the best 
possible patient care in the community 

• Reviewing work for musculoskeletal services development 

• Keeping people informed via the CCG website and on social media 

• Work through MY NHS, the membership scheme for the CCG 

• Piloting the New Models of Care (North Tyneside Care Plus) 

• Developing ‘My care, my way’ programme for older people 

• Working with young people and developing relationships within schools in the 
borough 
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• The patient forum plays a key role in keeping patient and public engagement as a 
corner stone of what the CCG does (highlights are shown in the below section on 
the patient forum) 

 

1.1.11.1. Patient forum 

The patient forum plays a key role in keeping patient and public engagement at the heart 
of the CCG’s agenda and is supported by North Tyneside Community and Health Care 
Forum (CHCF).  
 
The Patient Forum is a group of volunteer members who help to provide the local health 
service with a valuable insight into healthcare services from the patient’s perspective, 
driving change and improvement for the people of North Tyneside. 
 
This year, the Patient Forum has been recognised at Age Takes Centre Stage Award. The 
judging panel heard how the Patient Forum has helped the CCG to develop its New 
Models of Care, which is a new and improved way to care for the frail and vulnerable 
patients of North Tyneside. Information was also shared about how the forum has helped 
to raise awareness of the importance of self-care for patients, taking part in a number of 
community workshops to address the common issue of low-level back pain. 
 
Throughout the year, the patient forum has been involved in numerous projects to help the 
CCG. Some examples include: 

• Promoting self-care within self-care week 

• Members contributed to older people’s services and there are now ten 
recommendations to improve and develop patient experience  

• Hosted various drop-in session targeted to those with back pain 

• Led healthy walk groups which has contributed to a planned pilot aimed at having a 
walking on prescription scheme with referrals from GPs or allied health 
professionals  

• Contributed to the Macmillan Specialist Social Work service to consider a range of 
patient information  

• Members have influenced and improved psychological therapies across the 
borough and now have social prescribing 

 
1.1.12. Working with partners 

The CCG works with a range of health and social care partners to provide the best 
approach to healthcare and ensure that we maximise the health and wellbeing of those 
living in North Tyneside. 
 
To do this the CCG works closely with NHS England, local authorities, Health and 
Wellbeing Boards and other key stakeholders to develop a successful healthcare system. 
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Some examples of the CCG’s partnership working include: 
• Supporting the flu campaign with Public Health England and the local authority 

• Working with Healthwatch North Tyneside around GP practice work and urgent care 

• Working with Northumbria NHS Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust and social care 
providers to improve services for people with long-term conditions 

• The North Tyneside Health and Social Care Integration Programme is delivering 
work through four key areas including North Tyneside Care Plus (New Models of 
Care), older people, prevention and self-care, and adopting a system resilience 
approach 

 
1.1.13. Key issues and risks 

The Governance Statement gives detailed information about key issues and risks. 
 
In 2014/15 the CCG recorded a financial deficit of £6.4m and a deficit of £14.3m was 
forecast for 2015/16. This plan was reviewed mid-year and the forecast was revised to 
£19.3m deficit. The CCG has been in formal financial recovery throughout 2015/16 and 
this will continue into 2016/17. 
 
The growing elderly population and year-on-year efficiencies mean that care models and 
pathways need continuing development to move more care away from hospital facilities 
and provide more person-centred and integrated services closer to home. North Tyneside 
CCG operates within a wider health economy which is under significant pressure. It is 
therefore important that the CCG continues to work across the wider economy to find a 
sustainable solution to preserve health service for future generations.  
 
The CCG has considered the options for commissioning affordable and sustainable quality 
health care that is fit to meet the future needs of its communities and concluded that it 
should develop the concept of commissioning services through an Accountable Care 
Organisation (ACO), appropriate for North Tyneside. The CCG will work with partners to 
develop the ACO model in 2016/17, aiming for full system sign-off and model evaluation 
complete for April 2017. Within the ACO model, the majority of providers will work together 
under a single agreement to ensure that services are delivered in the right place at the 
right time by the right person to support the health and wellbeing of North Tyneside 
residents. By operating this way, the ACO will be making the best use of resources to 
ensure high quality value for money services.  
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1.2. Performance summary 
 
The CCG met the majority of the performance targets as indicated in the NHS England 
Planning Guidance, which required the CCG to: 

• Continue to meet the rights and pledges set out in the NHS Constitution 

• Deliver the NHS Mandate requirements by improving performance against seven 
nationally selected outcome measures across the five domains of the NHS 
Outcome Framework. 

• Deliver the five national and two local measures of the Quality Premium 
 
 

1.3. Performance analysis 
1.3.1. Performance measures 

1.3.1.1. Financial performance 

 
Key financial performance indicators 2015/16 
At the close of 2015/16, North Tyneside CCG had not met the statutory requirement to 
ensure expenditure in a financial year does not exceed its allocated resource.  The deficit 
for the CCG for 2015/16 was £19.3m, against the allocated revenue resource limit, as 
reported in full in the annual accounts.  
 
The CCG warned in-year that despite close monitoring and measures to manage financial 
pressures, it was forecasting a deficit in excess of the planned year-end position.  
 
Table 1: Key financial performance indicator 2015/16 

  £m 
Total allocated resource to the CCG 2015/16 301.2 
  
Total expenditure for 2015/16 320.5 
  
(Deficit) as at 31 March 2016  (19.3) 

 
Financial performance targets are reported in note 41 of the annual accounts. Clinical 
commissioning groups have a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as 
amended). North Tyneside CCG’s performance against those duties was as follows:  
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Table 2: Financial performance targets 

 2015/16 
Expenditure not to exceed income × Not Achieved 
Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified in 
Directions × Not Achieved 

Revenue administration resource use does not exceed the 
amount specified in Directions × Not Achieved 

 
In addition to the commissioning budget the CCG had an initial annual running costs 
budget of £4.7m in 2015/16. This was budgeted across pay, other running costs and the 
Service Level Agreement with North of England Commissioning Support (NECS).  There 
were no additional allocations to this budget during 2015/16. The CCG operates small 
office premises in North Shields leased from NHS Property Services.  
 
Financial outturn in 2015/16 
The CCG 2015/16 annual accounts are provided in full as part of the annual report. During 
the year, the CCG commissioned healthcare services to the value of £314.9m and 
incurred expenditure of £5.6m in respect of running costs. The overall closing position of 
the CCG was a deficit of £19.3m, as summarised in the table below.  
 
Table 3: CCG 2015/16 expenditure 

 Outturn 

 £m 
Acute health services  181.3 
Mental health services 26.9 
Community health services  28.6 
Continuing health care 23.5 
Primary care 42.3 
Other programme costs 12.3 
  
Total Programme (commissioning) costs  314.9 
  
Total Running  costs 5.6 
  
Total expenditure for 2015/16   320.5 
 
The majority of the CCG’s expenditure was spent with NHS organisations, purchasing 
healthcare for the benefit of North Tyneside residents. Funds were also used to purchase 
healthcare from non NHS bodies, as indicated in the accounts.  
 
Better Payment Practice Code 
The Better Payment Practice Code requires all CCGs to aim to pay all valid invoices by the 
due date or within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later. North Tyneside 
CCG has met the requirements of the code, as reported in the annual accounts and 
indicated in notes to the accounts. 
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Financial plans for 2016/17 
The headline 2016/17 CCG budgets were considered by the Council of Practices in March 
2016. The CCG allocation for 2016/17 is £312m and the CCG has a planned deficit of 
£19.3m.  Current plans identify that the CCG will break even in 2016/17 but will make no 
impact on repaying the £19.3m debt from 2015/16. CCG plans identify that this debt is 
repaid over the subsequent two years, after which the CCG returns to full financial 
balance.  A substantial QIPP savings programme is required to achieve this.  
 

1.3.1.2. CCG performance against national standards 

CCG performance is reviewed by NHS England to ensure that CCGs are delivering quality 
outcomes for patients, both locally and as part of the national standards. The following 
pages set out areas performing particularly well and some that still require improvement. 
 

Delivering against the NHS Constitution 
The NHS Constitution establishes the principles and values of the NHS in England.  It sets 
out the rights to which patients, public and staff are entitled, and pledges which the NHS is 
committed to achieve, together with responsibilities, which the public, patients and staff 
owe to one another to ensure that the NHS operates fairly and effectively.  The CCG is 
committed to delivery of all commitments outlined in the NHS Constitution.  
 
Table 4: Delivering against the NHS Constitution measures 

Constitution measures NTCCG performance 
Referral to treatment access times  
Diagnostic waiting times  
A&E waiting times  
Cancer waiting times  
Category red ambulance response times  
Mixed sex accommodation  
Cancelled operations  
Care programme approach  
 
Data for 2015/16 so far shows continued strong delivery of constitution standards for the 
local population of North Tyneside and we expect to achieve nearly all of the measures in 
the NHS Constitution. 
 
The one area of particular struggle in 2015/16 across the North East region has been 
ambulance response times and these have dropped below the 75% standard for a 
response within eight minutes of a 999 call. 
 
In previous years to improve performance the ambulance service has focussed on internal 
measures including reducing sickness absence rates, recruitment to vacant posts, 
realignment of base sites for ambulances. Action across the wider health economy is now 
required to improve performance on a consistent basis and we are committed to working 
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with both the North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust and partner CCGs to 
support recovery in 2016/17. 
 
The ambulance service has highlighted a number of actions for 2016/17 to improve 
response times including: 

• Reducing handover delays 

• Reducing diverts by 50% 

• Reducing downtime in shifts 

• Continuing the use of advanced paramedics and improving skill mix 

• Fire and Rescue Service continuing as first responders (national pilot subject to 
evaluation) 

• Increasing rapid response vehicle time 

• Increasing the volume of alternative services to A&E 

• Creating direct referral pathways to services and wards 

• Mobile directory of services to increase see and treat 

 
Within North Tyneside we have also seen a significant increase in handover delays 
following the opening of the new hospital at Cramlington. A joint plan is in place with both 
Northumbria Healthcare Foundation NHS Trust and the North East Ambulance Service 
NHS Foundation Trust to reduce the levels of delays in 2016/17 and release ambulance 
crews earlier, which will improve the ability of the ambulance service to improve response 
times.   
 

Delivering against the NHS Outcomes Framework 
The CCG Outcome Indicator Set was developed by NHS England to provide clear, 
comparative information for CCGs about the quality of commissioned health services and 
the associated health outcomes. The indicators are useful for CCGs to identify local 
priorities for quality improvement and to demonstrate progress that local health systems 
are making on improving outcomes. 
 
The CCG Outcomes Indicator Set consists of 75 individual indicators developed from and 
based around the five domains of the NHS Outcomes Framework. 
 

 

 

 
 
The Indicator Set does not in itself set thresholds or levels of ambition for CCGs, it is 
intended as a tool for CCGs to drive local improvement and set priorities. Due to the 
nature of the measures selected the majority are measured on an annual basis. The table 
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Figure 2: Five domains of the NHS Outcomes Framework 
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below gives a high level overview of our current progress towards improving these 
measures.  Published data is currently only available for 2014/15 as reflected North 
Tyneside CCG’s performance in the table below. The CCG has been monitoring 
performance against some of the indicators during 2015/16 and positive changes have 
been noted, specifically around emergency and hospital admissions for alcohol related 
issues. 
 
Table 5: CCG performance against NHS outcomes measures  

NHS Outcomes 
Framework Domain 

North Tyneside CCG Performance 
 

1. Preventing people from 
dying prematurely 

 

 Reduction in the Potential Years of Life Lost of 7.2% in 2012-2014 
bringing North Tyneside into line with the national average 

 24.1% reduction in maternal smoking at delivery in 2014/15 
 22.5% reduction in mortality from breast cancer in females in 2012-2014 
 Increase in the number of emergency admissions for alcohol related 

liver disease 
 North Tyneside remains an outlier for under 75 mortality from cancer 

2. Enhancing quality of life 
for people with LTC 

 

 North Tyneside is a positive outlier for the proportion of people who 
report they feel supported to manage their long term condition 

 Reductions in 2015/16 in unplanned hospitalisation for chronic 
ambulatory care conditions, and under 19s with asthma, diabetes or 
epilepsy 

 Improved access to community mental health services by people from 
black and minority ethnic groups 

 Slight reduction in the health-related quality of life for people with long 
term conditions 

3. Helping people to 
recover from episodes 
of ill health 

 

 Reduced emergency admissions in 2015/16 for acute conditions that 
should not usually require hospital admission, and for children with 
lower respiratory tract infections 

 Positive outlier for multifactorial risk assessment and timely surgery for 
patients with hip fracture 

 Increase and North Tyneside an outlier for alcohol specific hospital 
admissions 

4. Ensuring people have a 
positive experience of 
care 

 

 Continued high levels of reported patient experience for GP, hospital, 
and out of hours care and a high number of patients recommend the 
A&E and inpatient services at the two local hospitals through the 
Friends and Family test 

5. Safe environment 
 
 

 42% reduction in rate of C. difficile infections seen in 2015/16 
 2 MRSA infections – these were fully investigated with root cause 

analysis and deemed to have no modifiable factors that would have 
prevented the infection 

 
A number of the commissioning intentions for 2016/17 are planned to improve outcomes 
indicators. We will continue to monitor progress during the year.  
 

CCG performance: Quality Premium 2015/16 
The Quality Premium is intended to reward CCGs for improvements in the quality of 
commissioned services and for associated improvements in health outcomes and reducing 
inequalities. For 2015/16 the total amount potentially payable for achievement of the 
quality premium would be £5 per head of population, which equates to just over £1m for 
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North Tyneside CCG, if all targets were met. There are two nationally prescribed 
measures within the 2015/16 Quality Premium. The CCG was also asked to select a 
measure from a list of urgent and emergency care indicators, a list of mental health 
indicators, as well as choosing two local measures.  
 
Full year data is not yet available but indications are that North Tyneside CCG has made 
improvement across all areas. It has: 

• Increased the number of patients admitted for non-elective reasons, who were 
discharged at weekends or bank holidays 

• Improved antibiotic prescribing in primary care through  
o A reduction in the number of antibiotics prescribed in primary care 
o Bettering the national benchmark for in the proportion of broad spectrum 

antibiotics prescribed in primary care 

• Increased the number of COPD patients reviewed by a respiratory consultant or 
specialist nurse during their admission (local measure) 

• Reduced the risk of patient harm through decreasing the number of patients 
receiving procedures that evidence shows has limited clinical value (local measure)  

 

Although there has been good improvements in the level of coding of mental health 
patients attending A&E it looks unlikely the CCG will achieve the following measure: 

• Reduction in the number of patients attending an A&E department for a mental 
health-related needs who wait more than four hours 

   
The only measure that cannot be reported here is the potential years of life lost (PYLL) 
from causes considered amenable to healthcare: adults, children and young people’ 
measure as the information will not be available until October 2017.  
 
In accordance with NHS England guidance, a CCG will not qualify for the payment of the 
Quality Premium if the CCG incurs an unplanned deficit in 2015/16. This means that North 
Tyneside CCG will not qualify for a Quality Premium payment despite some measures 
being successfully achieved. 
 

Better Care Fund (BCF) 
A number of metrics were set nationally for use by all Better Care Funds in England.  
These were: 

• Number of emergency hospital admissions 
• Number of delayed transfers of care 
• Effectiveness of reablement 
• Number of permanent admissions to residential care 
 

The BCF target for emergency hospital admissions was for a 3.5% reduction. In North 
Tyneside this was achieved, the actual reduction being 3.8%. 
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For delayed transfers of care, in North Tyneside we aimed for there to be no more than 
3,201 days of delay. This was achieved, with an actual level of 3,042.  
 
The ‘effectiveness of reablement’ measures the percentage of people who were 
discharged from hospital to reablement, who remain out of hospital 91 days after 
discharge.  The baseline measure in 2013/14 was 91.3%, compared to an England 
average of 82.1%. In 2014/15 North Tyneside was the highest performer against this 
measure in the Northern Region and the BCF plan aimed to improve performance further 
to 94.0%. However it proved difficult to achieve and improvement from the already high 
level and the 2015 outcome of 92.6% fell short of the target. 
 
 Our target for the rate of permanent admissions to residential care in 2015/16 was 641 
per 100,000 persons aged 65+, which would have equated to 253 admissions. However 
there were 298 admissions, which equated to a rate of 755 per 100,000. Therefore, the 
target was not met. 

 

1.3.2. Sustainable development 

As an NHS organisation, and as a spender of public funds, the CCG have an obligation to 
work in a way that has a positive effect on the communities for which we commission and 
procure healthcare services. Sustainability means spending public money well, the smart 
and efficient use of natural resources and building healthy, resilient communities. By 
making the most of social, environmental and economic assets, we can improve health 
both in the immediate and long term, even in the context of rising cost of natural 
resources. 
 
The CCG acknowledge this responsibility to our patients, local communities and the 
environment by working hard to minimise our footprint. 
 
As a part of the NHS, public health and social care system, it is our duty to contribute 
towards the level of ambition set in 2014 of reducing the carbon footprint of the NHS, 
public health and social care system by 34% (from a 1990 baseline) equivalent to a 28% 
reduction from a 2013 baseline by 2020.  
 
1.3.2.1. Policies for sustainability 

In order to embed sustainability within our business, it is important to explain where 
sustainability features in our process and procedures.  
 
Table 6: Where sustainability is included in policies and procedures 

Area Is sustainability considered? 
Commissioning (environmental) As part of the contacting process 
Commissioning (social impact) As part of the contracting process 
Suppliers’ impact As part of the contracting process 
Travel Within our travel and expenses policy 

(currently subject to review) 
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One of the ways in which an organisation can embed sustainability is through the use of a 
Sustainable Development Management Plan (SDMP). We will be putting together an 
SDMP in the near future for consideration by the CCG. 
 
We do not currently use the Good Corporate Citizenship (GCC) tool or run awareness 
campaigns promoting sustainability.  
 
Climate change brings new challenges to our business both in direct effects to the 
healthcare estates, but also to patient health. Examples of recent years include the effects 
of heat waves, extreme temperatures and prolonged periods of cold, floods, droughts, etc. 
The organisation has identified the need for the development of a board-approved plan for 
future climate change risks affecting our area.  
 
1.3.2.2. Partnerships for sustainability 

As a commissioning and contracting organisation, we will need effective contract 
mechanisms to deliver our ambitions for sustainable healthcare delivery. The NHS policy 
framework already sets the scene for commissioners and providers to operate in a 
sustainable manner. Crucially for us as a CCG, evidence of this commitment will need to 
be provided in part through contracting mechanisms.   
 
1.3.2.3. Performance on sustainability 

As a part of the NHS, public health and social care system, it is our duty to contribute 
towards the level of ambition set in 2014 of reducing the carbon footprint of the NHS, 
public health and social care system. 
  

Travel 
The CCG can improve local air quality and improve the health of our community by 
promoting active travel.  
 
As part of the CCG’s commitment to and support of the environments every growing 
importance to sustainable travel, the CCG has participated in the Go Smarter travel to 
work scheme and has achieved both the bronze and silver award. This scheme has given 
the CCG’s employees advice on how to travel sustainably whilst getting to work and 
travelling for business purposes.  

Energy 
Table 7: Energy usage for 2015/16 

 Electricity Gas 
Use 46,294 22,911 
Cost (£) 5,115 822 
Carbon Emissions 26,615 4,807 
 

Page 24 of 78 
 



NHS North Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group annual report and accounts 2015/16 

Confidential waste  
Table 8: Confidential waste for 2015/16 

  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 
Use t 4.659 5.725 1.166 
Cost £ 1,151 1,414 288 
Carbon Emissions kgCO2 98 120 24 
 

Water 
Table 9: Water usage for 2015/16 

  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 
Use m3 218 202 407 
Cost £ 1,282 1,243 1,663 
Carbon Emissions kgCO2 229 213 428 
 
   
1.3.3. Patient and public involvement 

Public and patient involvement and engagement is an integral part of the work of the CCG. 
The CCG aspires to really embrace the public and patient voice within the organisation, 
going further than is required in the Health and Social Act 2012. 
 
The CCG public engagement and communications strategy meets the requirements set 
out in the Transforming Participation guidance and Everyone Counts. The CCG is an 
active Health and Wellbeing Board member driving the integration agenda in order to 
support the ambitions of the borough, underpinned by patient and community participation 
to ensure high quality sustainable responsive services for local people. 
 
The CCG has a proactive patient and public engagement approach ensuring that patients 
and local communities help to shape the commissioning intensions and the future of care 
delivery for the residents of North Tyneside.  Working with key partners, the CCG ensures 
that the patient and public voice is heard and actively engages them in service 
transformation and development programmes. Adopting systematic approaches such as 
MY NHS, which is a sophisticated customer management tool, also allows us to recruit 
patient and community members aligned against their own particular areas of interest. 
 
The CCG actively seeks ongoing feedback on NHS commissioned services and has a 
proactive approach to ensure that local voices are heard.  This then informs ongoing 
service and system improvement. 
 
Ensuring the delivery of person-centred care is a core feature of ongoing developments 
across primary and secondary care. Working with the patient forum and community 
members will raise the awareness of the importance of shared decision-making and help 
local people to get the most from their contacts with health professionals. 
 
The CCG is currently benchmarking its activity against Transforming Participation in health 
and social care, reviewing how the CCG performs against the criteria for individual 

Page 25 of 78 
 



NHS North Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group annual report and accounts 2015/16 

participation, public participation and public insight.  For example the range of sources that 
the CCG uses to gain understanding of people’s experiences include the GP patient 
survey, friends and family test, and the patient experience surveys that the CCG uses.  
 
1.3.4. Reducing inequality 

North Tyneside CCG complies with the Public Sector Equality Duty and the Equality Act 
2010. We have demonstrated our commitment to taking equality, diversity and human 
rights into account in everything we do, whether that is commissioning services, employing 
people, developing policies, communicating, consulting or involving people in our work as 
shown below: 
 
1.3.4.1. Planning and commissioning services to improve health and wellbeing 

The CCG works in close partnership with local authority public health colleagues and we 
prepare our operational and strategic plans using up-to-date public health information 
including the wealth of data and information in the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
(JSNA) 
 
We know that the range of health issues faced in North Tyneside is reflected nationally, 
with increasing long term conditions, increasing costs and increasing public 
expectation.  The NHS Five Year Forward View highlights the need for the NHS to lead 
where possible, or advocate when appropriate, a range of new approaches to improving 
health and wellbeing and self-care. We have articulated this vision for patients and 
providers in North Tyneside in our Commissioning Intentions and Five Year Sustainability 
and Transformational Plan.  
 
1.3.4.2. Engagement and partnership working  

The CCG works in partnership with local NHS Foundation Trusts, local organisations and 
community groups to identify the needs of the diverse local community we serve to 
improve health and healthcare for the local population.  The CCG actively seek the views 
of patients, carers and the public through a wide variety of means. As the local 
commissioners of health services, they seek to ensure that the services that are 
purchased on behalf of our local population reflect their needs and that the plans are 
informed by their views.   
 
1.3.4.3. Accessibility and communications 

The CCG ensures that the public buildings are accessible for people with a disability. 
Interpreter services are available when needed. Information for patients and the general 
public is available in other languages or formats such as large print or Braille and audio, on 
request.  
 
1.3.4.4. Accessible Information Standard 

The Accessible Information Standard advises organisations how they should ensure that 
disabled patients receive information in formats that they can understand and they receive 
appropriate support to help them to communicate.  The CCG understands that by 1 April 
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2016 all organisations that provide NHS or publicly funded adult social care must identify 
and record information and communication needs with service users: 

• At the first interaction or registration with their service 

• As part of on-going routine interaction with the service by existing service users 

The CCG has acknowledged this commitment and included the Accessible Information 
Standard in our revised Equality Impact Assessments tool ensuring that the standard is 
considered and we are compliant when Equality Impact Assessing all new and existing 
services. 
 
1.3.4.5. Governance 

North Tyneside CCG compliance with equality and diversity standards is governed by the 
Quality and Safety Committee, acting on behalf of the Governing Body. Our Executive lead 
for equality and diversity sits on the Clinical Executive and is a member of the Governing 
Body 
 
Equality and diversity training is a mandatory requirement for our staff. This includes online 
training assessments as well as face to face workshops as requested. Staff involved in the 
recruitment of new staff are required to undertake recruitment and selection training which 
includes awareness of equality and diversity legislation as it relates to the recruitment 
process.  
 
1.3.4.6. Equality Impact Assessment  

Our Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) Toolkit and Guidance which covers all equality 
groups offered protection under the Equality Act 2010 (race, disability, gender, age, sexual 
orientation, religion/belief, marriage and civil partnership and gender re-assignment) in 
addition to Human Rights and Carers has been refreshed for 2016.  
 
1.3.4.7. The Equality Delivery System 2 (EDS2) 

The EDS2 is a tool that has been designed by the NHS for the NHS to enable 
organisations to analyse their equality performance with the assistance of local 
stakeholders, prepare equality objectives and embed equality into mainstream 
commissioning activities. 
 
We have implemented the Equality Delivery System 2 (EDS2) framework and have been 
using the tool to support the mainstreaming of equalities into all our core business 
functions and performance for the community, patients, carers and staff. 
 
Our equality objectives for 2013/14/15 have been reviewed. We have implemented the 
EDS2 tool and we are in the process of developing our equality objectives for 2016/17. 
 
1.3.4.8. Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES) 

In accordance with the Public Sector Equality Duty, the NHS Equality and Diversity 
Council has agreed measures to ensure employees from black and ethnic minority (BME) 
backgrounds have equal access to career opportunities and receive fair treatment in the 
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workplace.  One of these measures (alongside EDS2) is the Workforce Race Equality 
Standard (WRES) which asks NHS organisations to demonstrate progress against 
workforce equality by collecting and analysing their workforce data in relation to nine 
specific indicators.  
 
NHS England has advised that from July 2016 onwards, CCGs will be expected to 
produce an annual WRES report, accompanied by an action plan. The CCG is taking 
appropriate action to ensure that WRES data will be compiled and reported in line with 
NHS England’s requirements.  
 
1.3.4.9. Equal opportunities for staff 

We can demonstrate fair and equitable recruitment, workforce engagement and 
employment terms and conditions to ensure levels of pay and related terms and conditions 
are fairly determined for all posts, with staff doing equal work, and work rated as of equal 
value, being entitled to equal pay. 
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2. Accountability report 
2.1. Corporate Governance report 
2.1.1. Members’ report 

 
2.1.1.1. Member practices 

The CCG is made up of all the 29 GP practices in North Tyneside, as listed below:  
 
Table 10: List of GP practices in North Tyneside 

49 Marine Avenue Surgery Park Parade Surgery 
Appleby Surgery Park Road Medical Practice 
Battle Hill Health Centre Portugal Place Health Centre 
Beaumont Park Medical Group Priory Medical Group 
Bewicke Medical Centre Redburn Park Medical Centre 

Collingwood Health Group Shiremoor Medical Group (formerly Dr Smith 
& Partners) 

Earsdon Park Medical Practice Spring Terrace Health Centre 
Forest Hall Medical Group Swarland Avenue Surgery 
Garden Park Surgery The Village Green Surgery 
Lane End Surgery Wellspring Medical Practice 
Mallard Medical Group (formerly Drs 
Preston and Austin) West Farm Surgery 

Marine Avenue Medical Centre Whitley Bay Health Centre 
Monkseaton Medical Centre Wideopen Medical Centre 
Nelson Medical Group Woodlands Park Health Centre 
Northumberland Park Medical Group  
 
2.1.1.2. The Clinical Chair of the CCG 

Dr John Matthews is the Clinical Chair of the CCG. He is a GP in Wallsend. He was in post 
at 1 April 2013 and remains in post.  
 
2.1.1.3. The CCG Chief Officer  

Maurya Cushlow was the Chief Officer and Accountable Officer of the CCG from its 
inception on 1 April 2013. She left the CCG on 31 March 2016. Jim Hayburn is now the 
Interim Chief Officer and Accountable Officer of the CCG. 
 
2.1.1.4. The CCG Council of Practices 

The CCG Council of Practices comprises a nominated GP from each of the 29 GP 
practices that form the CCG. Its terms of reference require it to meet at least four times a 
year. In 2015/16, the Council of Practices met six times and six meetings are planned for 
2016/17. The Chair of the Council of Practices is Dr John Matthews.  
 
2.1.1.5. The CCG Governing Body  

The membership of the CCG Governing Body is set out in the CCG constitution. There 
were some changes during the period covered by this report.  
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As indicated above the CCG Chief Officer post-holder changed at the end of March 2016. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer post-holder changed during 2015/16. Alison Thompson left the 
CCG at the end of April 2015. Rob Robertson was the Interim Chief Finance Officer (CFO) 
throughout April 2015. In May 2015 Jonathan Molyneux took over from Rob Robertson as 
the Interim CFO. In late October 2015 Deborah Hayman commenced in post as the Interim 
CFO and she remained in this post to the end of period covered by this report.   
 
Some CCG officers attend the Governing Body but are not classed as members because 
they do not have voting rights. Of the attendees, Phil Clow, Director of Commissioning 
Development left the CCG in September 2015. Robert Wiggins, Director of CCG 
Turnaround left the organisation in December 2015. In January 2016, Jim Hayburn joined 
as Interim Chief Operating Officer and was subsequently appointed as Interim Chief 
Officer. At the end of March 2016 John Wicks was appointed as Interim Chief Operating 
Officer.  
 
Table 11: Membership of the CCG Governing Body 

Role  Name of post holder  as 
at 1 April 2015 

Name of post holder  
as at 1 April 2016 

Clinical Chair of the CCG Dr John Matthews Dr John Matthews 
Chief Officer and Accountable Officer  Maurya Cushlow   
Interim Chief Officer and Accountable 
Officer   Jim Hayburn  

Deputy Lay Chair of the CCG Mary Coyle Mary Coyle 
Lay Member (audit and governance) David Willis David Willis 
Lay Member (patient and public 
involvement)  Eleanor Hayward Eleanor Hayward 

Secondary Care Specialist Doctor Mr Kyee Han Mr Kyee Han 
Executive Director of Nursing and 
Transformation (registered nurse) Dr Lesley Young-Murphy Dr Lesley Young-

Murphy 
Interim Chief Finance Officer  Rob Robertson Deborah Hayman 
Medical Director Dr Martin Wright Dr Martin Wright 
Non-voting members of the 
Governing Body   

North Tyneside Council Acting 
Director of Public Health Wendy Burke Wendy Burke 

Director of Commissioning 
Development   Phil Clow  

Interim Chief Operating Officer   John Wicks 
Director of CCG Turnaround  Robert Wiggins   
Head of Governance  Pauline Fox  Pauline Fox 
 
Membership of the CCG Governing Body is summarised in the table above. Profiles of 
members are given on the CCG website. http://northtynesideccg.nhs.uk/about-us/meet-
the-team/team-category-b/  
 
Throughout 2015/16 the Governing Body had six committees, the Audit Committee, the 
Remuneration Committee, the Quality and Safety Committee, the Finance Committee, the 
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Patient Forum and the Primary Care Committee. The latter is a Joint Committee with NHS 
England.  
 

2.1.1.6. Membership of the CCG Audit Committee 
Table 12: Membership of the CCG audit committee 

Role  Name of post holder  
Audit Committee Chair - Lay Member (audit and 
governance) 

David Willis 

Deputy Lay Chair of the CCG Mary Coyle 
GP member, nominated by the Council of Practices  Dr Richard Scott  
 
All members of the Audit Committee were in post on 1 April 2013 and remain in post.  
 
More details about the work of the CCG, its Governing Body and its committees are given 
in the Governance Statement. 
 
2.1.1.7. The Clinical Executive Committee 

The Clinical Executive Committee reports directly to the Council of Practices. Its primary 
role is to implement and deliver the strategic priorities of the CCG, working with the 
Council of Practices, the Governing Body and the Chief Officer.  
 
Table 13: Membership of the Clinical Executive Committee 

Role  Name of post holder as 
at 1 April 2015 

Name of post holder 
as at 1 April 2016 

Chief Officer and Accountable Officer  Maurya Cushlow  
Interim Chief Officer and Accountable 
Officer   Jim Hayburn  

Executive Director of Nursing and 
Transformation  Dr Lesley Young-Murphy 

Dr Lesley Young-
Murphy 

Medical Director Dr Martin Wright Dr Martin Wright 
Interim Chief Finance Officer  Rob Robertson Deborah Hayman 
Clinical Director Dr Ruth Evans (GP) Dr Ruth Evans (GP) 
Clinical Director Dr Shaun Lackey (GP) Dr Shaun Lackey (GP) 
Practice Manager Philip Horsfield Philip Horsfield 
Director of Commissioning 
Development  Phil Clow  

Interim Chief Operating Officer   John Wicks 
Director of CCG Turnaround  Robert Wiggins   
Head of Governance  Pauline Fox Pauline Fox 
 
2.1.1.8. Registers of Interest  

The CCG has arrangements in place for the effective management of conflicts of interest. 
Details of company directorships and other significant interests held by members of the 
Governing Body, Clinical Executive and other CCG committees are recoded in the 
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Register of Interests. The Register of Interests is available on the CCG 
website: http://northtynesideccg.nhs.uk/about-us/how-we-work/register-of-interest/  
 
2.1.1.9. Relevant discloses for 2015/16 

The CCG has not made or received any charitable donations in 2015/16. The CCG is 
committed to promoting and supporting research and development, as set out in the CCG 
constitution. There are no significant research and development activities to disclose.  
 
This report provides full details of the CCG activities and financial affairs for the year 1 
April 2015 to 31 March 2016. There have been no important events since the end of the 
financial year and the time of this report affecting the Clinical Commissioning Group. The 
CCG’s plans for the future are set out in the CCG Operational and Strategic Plans. There 
are no other likely future developments at the clinical commissioning group to be 
highlighted here. The CCG operates in North Tyneside, with no other branches elsewhere 
in the UK or outside the UK. 
 
2.1.1.10. External audit 

The Audit Commission appointed Mazars LLP as the CCG’s external auditor for the years 
2013/14 to 2016/17. The 2015/16 audit fee was £52,500 plus VAT.  
 
The auditors did not perform any non-audit work for the CCG during the 12 month period 
beginning April 2015.  
 
2.1.1.11. Disclosure of ‘serious untoward incidents’ 

The Governance Statement gives the details of incidents involving data loss or 
confidentiality breaches. No such incidents have occurred in the CCG during 2015/16.  
 
2.1.1.12. Statement as to disclosure to auditors 

Each individual who is a member of the Governing Body at the time the Members’ Report 
is approved confirms: 

• So far as the member is aware, that there is no relevant audit information of which 
the clinical commissioning group’s external auditor is unaware  

• That the member has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a member 
in order to make themself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish 
that the clinical commissioning group’s auditor is aware of that information 

 
 
 
 
Jim Hayburn 
Interim Chief Officer (Accountable Officer) 
NHS North Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group   
24 May 2016    
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2.1.2. Statement of Accountable Officer’s responsibilities 

 
The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) states that each Clinical 
Commissioning Group shall have an Accountable Officer and that Officer shall be 
appointed by the NHS Commissioning Board (NHS England). NHS England has 
appointed the Interim Chief Officer to be the Accountable Officer of the Clinical 
Commissioning Group. 
 
The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer, including responsibilities for the propriety 
and regularity of the public finances for which the Accountable Officer is answerable, for 
keeping proper accounting records (which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time 
the financial position of the Clinical Commissioning Group and enable them to ensure that 
the accounts comply with the requirements of the Accounts Direction) and for 
safeguarding the CCG’s assets (and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention 
and detection of fraud and other irregularities), are set out in the Clinical Commissioning 
Group’s Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. 
 
Under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), NHS England has directed 
each Clinical Commissioning Group to prepare for each financial year financial statements 
in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The financial statements 
are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the clinical commissioning group and of its net expenditure, changes in taxpayers’ 
equity and cash flows for the financial year. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Accountable Officer is required to comply with 
the requirements of the Manual for Accounts issued by the Department of Health and in 
particular to: 
 

• Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England, including the relevant 
accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on 
a consistent basis 

• Make judgments and estimates on a reasonable basis 

• State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the Manual for 
Accounts issued by the Department of Health have been followed, and disclose 
and explain any material departures in the financial statements 

• Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis 

 
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set 
out in my Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. 
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I also confirm that:  

• As far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the entity’s 
auditors are unaware, and that as Accountable Officer, I have taken all the steps 
that I ought to have taken to make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit 
information and to establish that the entity’s auditors are aware of that information  

• That the annual report and accounts as a whole is fair, balanced and 
understandable and that I take personal responsibility for the annual report and 
accounts and the judgments required for determining that it is fair, balanced and 
understandable  

 
 
 
 
Jim Hayburn 
Interim Chief Officer (Accountable Officer) 
NHS North Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group   
24 May 2016   
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2.1.3. Governance statement 

2.1.3.1. Introduction and context 

The clinical commissioning group was licensed from 1 April 2013 under provisions enacted 
in the Health and Social Care Act 2012, which amended the National Health Service Act 
2006. 
 
As at 1 April 2015, the clinical commissioning group was licensed without conditions.  
 
2.1.3.2. Scope of responsibility 

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal 
control that supports the achievement of the clinical commissioning group’s policies, aims 
and objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which I am personally 
responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me in Managing Public 
Money. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in my Clinical Commissioning 
Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. 
 
I am responsible for ensuring that the clinical commissioning group is administered 
prudently and economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively, 
safeguarding financial propriety and regularity. 
 
2.1.3.3. Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code 

We are not required to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code. However, we 
have reported on our corporate governance arrangements by drawing upon best practice 
available, including those aspects of the UK Corporate Governance Code we consider to 
be relevant to the clinical commissioning group and best practice. 
 
2.1.3.4. The Clinical Commissioning Group Governance Framework 

The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), at paragraph 14L(2)(b) states: 
The main function of the governing body is to ensure that the group has made appropriate 
arrangements for ensuring that it complies with such generally accepted principles of good 
governance as are relevant to it. 
 
• CCG Constitution  

The CCG had a fully compliant constitution at the time of authorisation, endorsed by the 
member practices and approved by NHS England. The terms of office for CCG lay 
members, the Clinical Chair and the Secondary Care Specialist Doctor are set out in the 
constitution. The CCG Constitution has been reviewed during 2015/16 and, following NHS 
England approval, a revised version was published in March 2016.  The CCG governance 
structure is described in detail in the CCG Constitution.  
 
• Council of Practices  

The 29 nominated member practice representatives meet together as the Council of 
Practices. The responsibilities of the Council of Practices are set out in the CCG 
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Constitution and there are agreed terms of reference. It sets the strategy and enables 
practices to influence the strategic direction and priorities of the group. The Council of 
Practices is chaired by the Clinical Chair of the CCG, who is also chair of the Governing 
Body. The Medical Director, Clinical Directors and GP Practice Managers attend the 
Council of Practices but are not voting members.  
 
The Council of Practices is required by its terms of reference to meet no less than four 
times a year and it met six times in the 12 month period starting 1 April 2015.  
During 2015/16, discussions at meetings of the Council of Practices included:  
 

• Commissioning for quality  

• Finance and performance including the Finance Recovery Plan (FRP) 

• Strategy including the Sustainability  and Transformation Plan (STP) 

• CCG development including proposals for the development of an Accountable Care 
Organisation (ACO) 

 

• Clinical Executive Committee  

The Clinical Executive Committee is a Committee of the CCG. The responsibilities of the 
Clinical Executive are set out in the CCG Constitution and there are agreed terms of 
reference. Its primary role is to implement and deliver the strategic priorities of the CCG, 
working with the Council of Practices and the Governing Body. It is chaired by the Chief 
Officer. The Clinical Executive membership comprises the Chief Officer, Medical Director, 
GP Clinical Directors, a nominated Practice Manager, the CCG Directors and the CCG 
Head of Governance. It meets twice a month.  
 
The Clinical Executive Committee has met 24 times in the 12 month period starting 1 April 
2015. Main items of business have included:  

• Commissioning for quality  

• Finance and performance  - including the oversight of the CCG Financial Recovery 
Plan and associated QIPP Programmes  

• Strategy  

• Governance and assurance  

• CCG development including proposals for the development of an Accountable Care 
Organisation (ACO) 

 
• CCG Governing Body  

The Governing Body is constituted in line with the Health and Social Care Act 2012, and 
associated CCG regulations. The membership of the NHS North Tyneside CCG Governing 
Body is set out in the CCG Constitution. The membership of the Governing Body during 
the year beginning 1 April 2015 is set out in the accountability report. As at 1 April 2016 
the membership of the Governing Body comprised: 
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Voting members: 

• Clinical Chair  - Dr John Matthews 

• Deputy Lay Chair - Mary Coyle  

• Lay Member for Governance and Audit - David Willis  

• Lay Member for Patient and Public Involvement - Eleanor Hayward 

• Secondary Care Specialist Doctor - Mr Kyee Han 

• Interim Chief Officer - Jim Hayburn from March 2016 to date  

• Medical Director - Dr Martin Wright 

• Executive Director of Nursing and Transformation - Dr Lesley Young-Murphy  

• Interim Chief Finance Officer  - Deborah Hayman from October 2015 to date 

 
Non-voting members: 

• Local authority Acting Director of Public Health  - Wendy Burke   

• Interim Chief Operating Officer – John Wicks from March 2016 to date 

• Head of Governance - Pauline Fox 

 
The Governing Body has a key role to play in the CCG; it assures the decision-making 
process of the CCG and oversees the delivery of the duties of the CCG. 
 
The Standing Orders state that the Governing Body will meet no less than four times per 
year. During the year beginning 1 April 2015, the CCG Governing Body has met 12 times, 
seven times in public with papers posted in public in advance of the meeting and notices 
placed inviting public attendance. On each of those occasions, members of the public 
have attended.  
 
The 2014/15 Annual Accounts and Annual Report were presented in public at the CCG 
Annual Public Meeting on 23 June 2015.  
 
Throughout the year the CCG Governing Body was supported by six committees, each 
chaired by a lay member of the Governing Body: the Audit Committee, the Remuneration 
Committee, the Quality and Safety Committee, the Patient Forum, the Finance Committee 
and the Primary Care Committee. The latter is a Joint Committee with NHS England.  
The CCG Governing Body receives regular reports from the committees of the Governing 
Body on the quality of commissioned services and on finance and performance. Other 
items of business discussed in 2015/16 have included:  
 

• Commissioning for quality  

• Finance and performance including the CCG Financial Recovery Plan 

• Strategy including the Sustainability  and Transformation Plan (STP) 
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• Governance and assurance  

• CCG development including proposals for the development of an Accountable Care 
Organisation (ACO) 

 
In addition to the formal meetings held during the year, there has been a development 
programme including five Governing Body development sessions covering:  
 

• CCG risk appetite, in May 2015 

• An externally facilitated challenge session, in July 2015  

• Finance and performance, in October 2015 

• Place-based commissioning and the development of an Accountable Care 
Organisation model of commissioning, in December 2015 

• Governing Body self-assessment and the development of 2016/17 corporate 
objectives, in February 2016 

 
The Governing Body completed a self-assessment of its operation and effectiveness 
during 2015/16. In January 2016 an on-line questionnaire (based on the UK Corporate 
Governance code focusing on Leadership, Effectiveness, Accountability, Remuneration 
and Relations with Stakeholders and on the DH Board Governance Assurance Framework 
(2012) focusing on effective board room practice) was circulated to all Governing Body 
members and attendees. The collated responses were discussed in detail at the 
Governing Body development session in February 2016  
 
• Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee is a committee of the Governing Body. It was in operation throughout 
the 12 month period starting 1 April 2015 and has continued to operate since the period 
end. The objective of the committee is: 

• To provide assurance to the Governing Body and to me through an independent 
and objective view of internal control 

 
The Audit Committee has agreed terms of reference. The committee is comprised entirely 
of independent members, as follows:  

• CCG Lay Member for Governance and Audit (Chair) - David Willis 

• CCG Deputy Lay Chair - Mary Coyle 

• GP nominee of the CCG Council of Practices - Dr Richard Scott, 

 
All members have been in post continuously from 1 April 2015 and remain in post.  
The CCG Internal and External Auditors, Interim Chief Finance Officer, Head of Finance 
and Head of Governance routinely attend the Audit Committee; the Chief Officer attends at 
least annually and the Counter Fraud Officer has a standing invitation.   
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In accordance with the Terms of Reference, the Audit Committee meets not less than five 
times per financial year. In 2015/16 the Audit Committee met seven times. On each 
occasion, Audit Committee members meet privately and then with the internal and external 
auditors prior to the CCG officers joining the meeting. The Audit Committee Chair provides 
a written briefing to all members of the CCG Governing Body after each meeting of the 
Audit Committee.  
 
The Audit Committee’s main activities throughout the 12 month period starting 1 April 2015 
have been:  

• Governance and assurance: 

o Overseeing the risk management processes across the CCG 

o Approval and monitoring of the CCG’s audit plan 

o Taking assurances on quality and safety 

o Receiving audit reports in-year and 

o Reviewing the annual report, annual governance statement and annual 
accounts for the Governing Body 

 
The Audit Committee completed a self-assessment of its operation and effectiveness 
during 2015/16. In December 2015 an on-line questionnaire (based on the NHS Audit 
Committee handbook) was circulated to all members and attendees of the CCG Audit 
Committee. The collated responses were discussed in detail at the January 2016 meeting 
of the Audit Committee. A few areas for improvement were identified and an action plan 
was prepared.  
 
•  Remuneration Committee 

The Remuneration Committee was in operation throughout the 12 month period starting 1 
April 2015 and has continued to operate since the period end. The roles and 
responsibilities of the committee are set out in the CCG Constitution. The Remuneration 
Committee has agreed terms of reference. The remit is to:  

• Make recommendations to the CCG Governing Body on the approach to pay and 
remuneration for employees of the CCG and people who provide services to the 
CCG and allowances under any pension scheme it might establish as an alternative 
to the NHS pension scheme.  

 
The committee is comprised entirely of lay members, as follows:  

• CCG Deputy Lay Chair (Chair) - Mary Coyle 

• CCG Lay Member for Governance and Audit - David Willis 

• CCG Lay Member for Patient and Public Involvement - Eleanor Hayward 

 
All members were in post at the time of CCG authorisation, all have been in post 
continuously from 1 April 2015 and remain in post.  
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The CCG Head of Governance attends the Remuneration Committee and the Chief Officer 
and Head of Human Resources (from the Commissioning Support Unit) are in attendance 
as required.  
 
When an individual is the subject matter of discussion at any time during the committee 
meeting, that individual is excluded from the meeting. The Quoracy for the meeting is two 
members. As there are three members the committee remains quorate even when a 
member is excluded.  
 
The terms of reference require that the Remuneration Committee will meet at least 
annually, with no more than 15 months between meetings. The Remuneration Committee 
has met five times in the period from 1 April 2015 to the time of this report. The principal 
items of business were: 

• Consideration and approval of the CCG 2014/15 remuneration report (part of the 
CCG annual report)  

• Remuneration of CCG Chief Officer and CCG Very Senior Managers (VSMs), 
including that remuneration is reasonable and in line with extant national guidance  

• Remuneration of interim senior staff, including Interim Chief Finance Officer, 
Director of Turnaround, Interim Chief Operating Officer and Interim Chief Officer, 
including that remuneration is reasonable and in line with extant national guidance  

• Remuneration of Clinical Directors, Clinical Leads and Practice Managers who 
undertake sessional work for the CCG, including that remuneration is reasonable 
and noting that there is currently no national guidance on this 

• Arrangements for review of the terms of office that would expire on 31 March 2016 

 

• Quality and Safety Committee 

The Quality and Safety Committee was in operation throughout the 12 month period 
starting 1 April 2015 and has continued to operate since the period end. The roles and 
responsibilities of the committee are set out in the CCG Constitution. The objective of the 
committee is: 

• To be responsible for ensuring the appropriate governance systems and processes 
are in place to commission, monitor and ensure the delivery of high quality safe 
patient care in commissioned services 

 
The Quality and Safety Committee has agreed terms of reference. The Committee 
comprises: 

• Deputy Lay Chair (Chair of the Committee) - Mary Coyle 

• Secondary Care Specialist Doctor - Mr Kyee Han 

• GP nominee of the CCG Council of Practices - Dr James Lunn 

• Medical Director - Dr Martin Wright 

• Executive Director of Nursing and Transformation - Dr Lesley Young-Murphy 
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• Head of Quality and Patient Safety - Sharon Haggerty (to 31 March 2016) 

• Practice Manager nominated by the Council of Practices - Alice Southern 

• Head of Governance - Pauline Fox 

 
The Quality and Safety Committee has met a total of 10 times in the year from 1 April 2015 
to 31 March 2016. The Quality and Safety Committee provides regular written reports to 
the Governing Body.  
 
The Quality and Safety Committee’s main activities throughout the period starting 1 April 
2015 have been:  

• Commissioning for quality  

• Safeguarding adults and children 

• Governance and assurance – including emergency preparedness, business 
continuity and information governance 

• Patient safety including the work of the serious incident panel 

• Primary care quality assurance, in support of NHS England 

• The local implementation of recommendations from key national reports  

 
The Quality and Safety Committee agreed an inclusive approach to a committee self-
assessment of effectiveness. A questionnaire was administered during March 2016 and 
the collated results were subsequently reported to the committee.  
 
• Patient Forum  

The Patient Forum was in operation throughout the 12 month period starting 1 April 2015 
and has continued to operate since the period end. There have been seven meetings of 
the patient forum in the 12 month period starting April 2015 and Eleanor Hayward, the 
Chair of the Committee, has attended them all. 
 
The Patient Forum assists the CCG in its duty to secure public involvement and 
engagement in the planning, development and operation of commissioning arrangements, 
providing a clear patient and carer voice direct to the Governing Body.  
 
The Patient Forum is chaired by the CCG Lay Member for Public and Patient Involvement 
and facilitated by the North Tyneside Community and Health Care Forum. Dr Lesley 
Young-Murphy, the Executive Director of Nursing, is the lead officer for the Patient Forum.  
 
The Patient Forum aims to have membership from each of the 29 GP Practices in North 
Tyneside. Agenda items for the Forum are a mix of CCG areas for discussion and 
member-led issues. The Patient Forum is strong, robust and acts as a critical friend to the 
CCG and its Governing Body. Members are encouraged to challenge and debate 
throughout all engagement processes. The strength of the Forum is the dedication and 
commitment within the membership as well as their passion for local health services. 
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The Patient Forum is supported by a range of working groups. The topics were decided by 
Forum Members and are compatible with CCG plans and priorities.  The Patient Forum 
has a programme of work planned throughout 2016/17.  
 
• Finance Committee   

The Finance Committee was in place in April 2015 and remains in place.  There are 
agreed terms of reference for the committee. The remit of the committee is to:  

• Oversee the current and projected financial position of the CCG and work on the 
financial recovery plan in relation to this to provide assurance to the Governing 
Body 

• The duties of the committee are driven by the priorities identified by the CCG and 
the associated risks. The committee: 

o Reviews the latest financial position to seek assurance that the planned 
outturn is deliverable 

o Performs deep dives into the main parts of the recovery plan on a rolling 
basis 

o Assesses the impact of any current schemes on the next financial year and 
advise if more action is necessary to mitigate financial risks (such as but not 
limited to the current risk share schemes) 

o Recommends whether the actions in the CCG assurance framework are 
sufficient to mitigate risk 

o Provides assurance to the CCG and its Governing Body and Audit 
Committee as necessary 

 
The committee membership is as follows:  

• Lay Member for Patient and Public Involvement (Chair) - Eleanor Hayward 

• Lay Member for Governance and Audit - David Willis  

• Chief Officer – Maurya Cushlow to March 2016 and Jim Hayburn (Interim Chief 
Officer) from March 2016 to date  

• Interim Chief Finance Officer  - Rob Robertson in April 2016; Jonathan Molyneux 
from May to October 2015 and Deborah Hayman from October 2015 to date 

• Primary Care representative – Lin Murray to February 2016 and Cynthia Jackson 
from March 2016 to date 

 
The terms of reference require that the Finance Committee will meet at least monthly. The 
committee has met 24 times during the period April 2015 to March 2016 and continues to 
meet. The principal items of business were the CCG Financial Recovery Plan (FRP) and 
detailed oversight of all QIPP projects though the QIPP Assurance Committee.  
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• Primary Care Committee   

The Primary Care Committee is Joint Committee with NHS England formed with the 
purpose of jointly commissioning primary medical services for the people of North 
Tyneside.  
 
It was established in April 2015 and remains in place.  There are agreed terms of 
reference for the committee. The terms of reference were reviewed by the committee in 
November 2015 and a revised version was approved by the Governing Body in January 
2016.  
 
The committee membership is as follows:  

• CCG Deputy Lay Chair (Chair) - Mary Coyle 

• One other CCG Lay Member  

• A Director from North Tyneside CCG or deputy – Phil Clow to September 2015 and 
Dr Lesley Young-Murphy from October 2015 to date 

• A Director from NHS England (Cumbria and North East) or deputy 

• A nominated GP (non-voting member) – Dr John Matthews 

There is a standing invitation to the meetings of this committee to specified partners in a 
non-voting capacity, namely the North Tyneside Health and Wellbeing Board and 
Healthwatch North Tyneside  
 
The terms of reference require that the Primary Care Committee will meet not less than 
four times per year. The committee has met five times during the period April 2015 to 
March 2016 and continues to meet. The principal items of business included: 

• Agreeing ways of working for jointly commissioning primary care services, 

• Development of a General Practice Strategy  

• The results of the GP Practice survey 

•  CQC inspections of GP practices  

• The development of the North Tyneside Local Plan and its implications for General 
Practice 

• Committee self-assessment of effectiveness  
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• Attendance records for CCG Governing Body and committees 

 
The attendance records for the Council of Practices, Governing Body and associated 
committees for 2015/16 are given in the following tables:  
 
Table 14: Council of practices attendance records 2015/16 

Name/practice Total (out of 6) 
Dr John Matthews, Clinical Chair and Chair of Council of 
Practices  

 
6 

49 Marine Avenue 6 
Appleby Surgery 6 
Battle Hill Health Centre 6 
Beaumont Park 6 
Bewicke Medical Centre 4 
Collingwood Health Group 4 
Earsdon Park Medical Practice 4 

Forest Hall Medical Group 6 
Garden Park Surgery 6 
Lane End Surgery 6 
Mallard Medical Group (formerly Drs Preston and Austin) 3 
Marine Avenue Medical Centre 6 
Monkseaton Medical Centre 6 
Nelson Medical Group 6 
Northumberland Park Medical Group 6 
Park Parade Surgery 6 
Park Road Medical Practice 6 
Portugal Place Health Centre 6 
Priory Medical Group 5 
Redburn Park Medical Centre 4 
Shiremoor Medical Group (formerly Dr Smith & Partners) 3 
Spring Terrace Health Centre 5 
Swarland Avenue Surgery 6 
The Village Green Surgery 5 
Wellspring Medical Practice 4 
West Farm Surgery 5 
Whitley Bay Health Centre 6 
Wideopen Medical Centre 6 
Woodlands Park Health Centre 5 
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Table 15: Governing Body and Committee attendance records 2015/16 

 Governing 
Body 

Clinical 
Executive 

Audit 
Committee 

Q&S 
committee 

Remunerati
on 
Committee 

Finance 
Committee 

Primary 
Care 
Committee  

Patient 
Forum 

Name Post Held Actual attendances 
Possible attendance 

Actual 
attendances 
Possible 
attendance 

Actual 
attendances 
Possible 
attendance 

Actual 
attendances 
Possible 
attendance 

Actual 
attendances 
Possible 
attendance 

Actual 
attendances 
Possible 
attendance 

Actual 
attendances 
Possible 
attendance 

Actual 
attendances 
Possible 
attendance 

Dr John 
Matthews 1  Clinical Chair 7 / 7       

2 / 5  

Mary Coyle 2 Deputy Lay Chair 6 / 7  7 / 7 9 / 10 5 / 5  5 / 5  
Eleanor 
Hayward 3 Lay Member (PPI) 7 / 7    5 / 5 23 / 24 

 7/7 

David Willis 4 Lay Member (audit) 7 / 7  7 /7  5 / 5 23 / 24   
Kyee Han Secondary Care Doctor 5 / 7   4 / 10     
Maurya 
Cushlow 5 Chief Officer 5 / 7 17 / 24 3   16 / 24 

  

Lesley 
Young-
Murphy 

Director of 
Transformation & 
Executive Nurse 6 / 7 17 / 24  9 / 10   1 / 2 

 

Dr Martin 
Wright Medical Director  5 / 7 21 / 24  7 / 10   

  

Rob 
Robertson 

Interim Chief Finance 
Officer (April 2015) 1 / 1 2 / 2    3 / 3 

  

Jonathan 
Molyneux  

Interim Chief Finance 
Officer (May to October 
2015) 3 / 3 10 / 11    10 / 11 

  

Deborah 
Hayman 

Interim Chief Finance 
Officer (October 2015 to 
date) 3 / 3 10 / 12    11 / 11 

  

Phil Clow 

Director of 
Commissioning 
Development (left the 
CCG September 2015) 4 / 4 11 / 12     3 / 3 

 

1Chair of Governing Body 
2 Chair of Quality and Safety Committee; Chair of Remuneration Committee and Chair of Primary Care Committee 
3 Chair of Patient Forum and Chair of Finance Committee 
4 Chair of Audit Committee 
5 Chair of Clinical Executive: as Chief Officer, required to attend Audit Committee at least once per year 
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 Governing 
Body 

Clinical 
Executive 

Audit 
Committee 

Q&S 
committee 

Remunerati
on 
Committee 

Finance 
Committee 

Primary 
Care 
Committee  

Patient 
Forum 

Name Post Held Actual attendances 
Possible attendance 

Actual 
attendances 
Possible 
attendance 

Actual 
attendances 
Possible 
attendance 

Actual 
attendances 
Possible 
attendance 

Actual 
attendances 
Possible 
attendance 

Actual 
attendances 
Possible 
attendance 

Actual 
attendances 
Possible 
attendance 

Actual 
attendances 
Possible 
attendance 

Jim Hayburn 

Interim Chief Operating 
Officer (from January 
2016) 6 2 / 2 5 / 5    3 / 3 

  

Wendy Burke 

North Tyneside Local 
Authority Acting Director 
of Public Health 5 / 7      

  

Pauline Fox  Head of Governance  6 / 7 21 / 24  8 / 10     
Dr Ruth 
Evans 

Clinical Director 
 19 / 24     

  

Dr Shaun 
Lackey 

Clinical Director 
 20 / 24     

  

Philip 
Horsfield 

Practice Manager, 
Clinical Executive 
Member  19 / 24     

  

Sharon 
Haggerty 

Head of Quality and 
Patient Safety, Q&S 
committee member     5 / 10   

  

Dr Richard 
Scott 

GP, Audit Committee 
member    5 / 7    

  

Dr James 
Lunn  

GP, Q&S Committee 
member     7 / 10   

  

Alice 
Southern 

Practice Manager Q&S 
Committee Member    8 / 10   

  

Lin Murray Practice Manager 
Finance Committee 
Member (April 2016 to 
February 2016)      13 / 22 

  

Cynthia 
Jackson 

Practice Manager 
Finance Committee 
Member (from March 
2016)      1 / 2 

  

6 Subsequently appointed as Interim Chief Officer but this committee attendance was in the role as Interim Chief Operating Officer 
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• Conclusion of the review of the Governance Framework 

This review of the CCG Governance Framework, including information about the CCG 
governance arrangements describing the composition and work of the Governing Body 
and other committees of the CCG and the observations of the Head of Internal Audit, has 
indicated that the CCG has appropriate arrangements for ensuring that it complies with 
such generally accepted principles of good governance as are relevant to it.  
 
 
2.1.3.5. The Clinical Commissioning Group Risk Management Framework 

• Embedding risk management 
Risk management is embedded in the work of the CCG, with the aim of preventing risks 
where possible and taking mitigating action to minimise the occurrence of risks that are 
unpreventable. This is done through: 

• The Risk Management Policy and supporting procedures 

• The committee structures described earlier in this report 

• The effective management of conflicts of interests 

• Management processes, including, for example, the maintenance of effective risk 
registers 

• The Risk Assurance Framework 

• The CCG programme of statutory and mandatory training 

• The commissioning of effective commissioning support services, including, for 
example, information governance support and advice 

• Building a counter fraud culture 

 

• CCG risk management policy 
The key elements of the CCG Risk Management Policy are designed to identify and 
control risks, including potential risks to finance, reputation, compliance, health and safety 
including risks of an operational or strategic nature. The CCG risk management policy was 
reviewed and a revised version was approved by the CCG Governing Body in April 2015.  
The aims of the Risk Management Policy are summarised as follows: 

• To ensure that risks to the achievement of the CCG’s objectives are understood 
and effectively managed 

• To ensure that the risks to the quality of services that the organisation commissions 
from healthcare providers are understood and effectively managed 

• To assure the public, patients, staff and partner organisations that the CCG is 
committed to managing risk appropriately 

• To protect the services, staff, reputation and finances of the CCG through the 
process of early identification of risk, risk assessment, risk control and elimination 
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This policy applies to all employees and contractors of the CCG. All staff at every level of 
the organisation are required to recognise that risk management is their personal 
responsibility. 
 

• Risk identification 
Risks are systematically identified. Risks are highlighted in committee papers and 
committee discussions. The Head of Governance attends the Council of Practices, the 
Governing Body, committees of the Governing Body and the Clinical Executive. She has a 
key role in identifying risks to the achievement of corporate objectives, supporting 
colleagues in effective risk management and advising on the escalation of risks in line with 
the risk management policy.  
 

• Risk appetite  
Risk appetite is the organisation’s unique attitude towards risk taking that in turn dictates 
the amount of risk considered acceptable. It is the amount of risk that the organisation is 
prepared to accept, tolerate or be exposed to at any point in time. The Governing Body 
has a responsibility to maintain a strategic view of the organisation’s risk appetite, as set 
out in the Risk Management Policy.  
 
The CCG Governing Body has noted that effective risk management is integral to the work 
of the CCG in delivering against its corporate objectives and in its stewardship of public 
funds. It was discussed in a Governing Body development session in May 2015 and the 
outcome of that discussion was reported to the Governing Body in public session in June 
2015.  
 

2.1.3.5.1 Risk Assessment  
In order to ensure that appropriate controls are put in place to eliminate the risk or mitigate 
its effect a standard risk matrix is used across the CCG, based on current national 
guidance provided by the National Patient Safety Agency.  
 

• Risk grading and risk registers  
The risk management policy sets out the responsibilities of the CCG Committees, lead 
officers and staff members in respect of identification and management of risks. The risk 
management policy sets out the arrangements for the escalation of risk. 
 

• Risk Assurance Framework  
The Risk Assurance Framework is predicated on risks to the achievement of the CCG 
corporate objectives. The Assurance Framework was considered by the CCG Governing 
Body Committees throughout the year, with risks and the management of those risks 
actively reviewed. The CCG Governing Body considered the Assurance Framework in 
public session in April 2015, September 2015 and January 2016.  
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• Working with stakeholders and partners  
The CCG works in partnership with a wide range of key partners, including with North 
Tyneside Council, providers of health care (including NHS Foundation Trusts, GPs, 
nursing home providers and other independent sector, voluntary, community  and third 
sector providers). The CCG also works closely with a number of stakeholder groups, such 
as the Community and Healthcare Forum. The CCG strives to ensure that work carried out 
across the health and social care economy adheres to the CCG’s principles of robust risk 
management. Partnerships can involve high levels of risk because of their complexity and 
potential lack of clarity in the roles and responsibilities of those involved.  The risk 
management policy refers to the arrangements that are required to mitigate the risks.  
 

• Counter fraud culture  
The CCG has taken positive steps to instil a counter fraud culture. There is an anti-fraud 
policy in place, covering counter fraud and bribery. This is alongside the Standards of 
Business Conduct Policy. The Audit Committee has approved the Counter Fraud plan and 
received progress reports on this. Counter fraud publicity information is publically 
displayed in the CCG premises.  
 
There have been no fraud issues reported in the CCG during the period 1 April 2015 to the 
date of this report.   
 
2.1.3.6. The Clinical Commissioning Group Internal Control Framework 

A system of internal control is the set of processes and procedures in place in the clinical 
commissioning group to ensure it delivers its policies, aims and objectives.  It is designed 
to identify and prioritise the risks, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised 
and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and 
economically. 
 
The system of internal control allows risk to be managed to a reasonable level rather than 
eliminating all risk; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of 
effectiveness. 
 
The CCG system of internal control includes:  

• A Governing Body that ensures that the CCG has appropriate arrangements in 
place to exercise its functions effectively, efficiently and economically and in 
accordance with the CCG’s principles of good governance 

• An approved CCG constitution, incorporating Standing Orders, Scheme of 
Delegation and Prime Financial Policies 

• A committee structure, where each committee has a vital role in contributing to the 
establishment of an effective governance infrastructure  

• An appointed Accountable Officer who is responsible (amongst other duties) for 
ensuring that the clinical commissioning group fulfils its duties to exercise its 
functions effectively, efficiently and economically thus ensuring improvement in the 
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quality of services and the health of the local population whilst maintaining value for 
money. By working closely with the chair of the Governing Body, the Accountable 
Officer will ensure that proper constitutional, governance and development 
arrangements are put in place to assure the members (through the Governing 
Body) of the organisation’s ongoing capability and capacity to meet its duties and 
responsibilities 

• An appointed Interim Chief Finance Officer who is responsible for (amongst other 
duties) overseeing robust audit and governance arrangements leading to propriety 
in the use of the CCG’s resources 

• Staff members are responsible for reporting problems of operations, monitoring and 
improving their performance, and monitoring non-compliance with the corporate 
policies and various professional codes, or violations of policies, standards, 
practices and procedures 

 

• Internal audit service 
One important feature of the system of internal control is the work of the Internal Audit 
service. Through a systematic programme of work Internal Audit provide assurance on key 
systems of control. The Head of Internal Audit reports to the Audit Committee and has 
direct access to the Audit Committee Chair as required.  
 

• Assurances from outsourced support services 
The Head of Internal Audit has advised that the CCG should independently consider what 
assurance can be taken from third party assurance reports and what, if any, weaknesses 
should be included in this governance statement.  
 
The CCG relies on several external support services providers, including the NHS Shared 
Business Service (SBS), Electronic Staff Records (ESR) (McKesson) and the NHS 
Business Services Authority (BSA). These organisations provide service auditor reports as 
part of the evidence of assurance required by their customers. All but one of the 2015/16 
reports have been issued. No matters of concern have been highlighted to the CCG during 
the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 and up to the time of this report.  
 
Payroll services are provided by the Payroll Bureau hosted by Northumbria Healthcare 
NHS Foundation Trust. NHS North Tyneside CCG is a member of the Payroll Consortium. 
No concerns have been reported at those meetings during 2015/16. Through its 
membership of the Payroll Consortium, the CCG receives an annual assurance letter 
setting out the results of the internal audit work carried out during the year. This letter was 
issued on 5 May 2016 confirming that there have been no concerns identified during the 
period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016. 
 
The CCG has outsourced a range of support services to the North of England 
Commissioning Support Unit (NECS), hosted by NHS England.  Assurances on the 
operation of these services during the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 are provided 
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by NHS England’s internal auditors, Deloitte LLP, via means of two IASE 3402 reports and 
a NECS assurance letter. The first report, covering 6 months from 1 April 2015, was 
issued in December 2015. At the Audit Committee meeting in January 2016, the 
Committee concluded that the reported exceptions were not sufficiently material to require 
a formal response. 
 
The second report, covering the period 1 October 2015 to 29 February 2016 was issued in 
April 2016, together with a ‘bridge’ letter from the NECS Finance Director covering the 
period 1 March to 31 March 2016. These were considered at the Audit Committee in May 
2016. The Committee concluded that the reported exceptions were not sufficiently material 
to require a formal response. 
 

• Policies 
Another key feature of the system of internal control is the application of a range of policies 
and procedures. The CCG has a suite of policies in place, including corporate policies, HR 
policies, and Information Governance policies. Each policy has a named director lead, 
their implementation has been monitored and reviews undertaken as necessary in-year.  
 
The CCG Quality and Safety Committee received an assurance report in December 2015 
on matters including statutory and mandatory training, compliance with health and safety, 
fire safety and first aid at work. There is commitment to Continuing Professional 
Development, with robust processes in place for staff supervision, training, objective 
setting, performance review and appraisal.  
 
2.1.3.6.1 Information Governance  

The NHS Information Governance Framework sets the processes and procedures by 
which the NHS handles information about patients and employees, in particular personal 
identifiable information.  The NHS Information Governance Framework is supported by an 
information governance toolkit and the annual submission process provides assurances to 
the clinical commissioning group, other organisations and to individuals that personal 
information is dealt with legally, securely, efficiently and effectively. 
 
We place high importance on ensuring there are robust information governance systems 
and processes in place to help protect patient and corporate information.  We have 
established an information governance management framework and are developing 
information governance processes and procedures in line with the information governance 
toolkit.  We have ensured all staff undertake annual information governance training and 
have implemented a staff information governance handbook to ensure staff are aware of 
their information governance roles and responsibilities. 
 
There are processes in place for incident reporting and investigation of serious incidents.  
We are developing information risk assessment and management procedures and a 
programme will be established to fully embed an information risk culture throughout the 
organisation against identified risks. 
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2.1.3.6.2 Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources 

North Tyneside CCG has a duty to use resources economically, efficiently and effectively.  
The CCG budget comprises the commissioning budget and the operating budget. The 
2015/16 budget setting process was assured by the Governing Body and the budget was 
approved by the Council of Practices in March 2015. A similar process has been followed 
for the 2016/17 budget. Material changes to the CCG budget are subject to the approval of 
the Council of Practices.  
 
The CCG commissioning budget is deployed to commission healthcare for the population 
of North Tyneside, in line with national guidance. The CCG works in close partnership with 
local healthcare providers. Regular contract monitoring meetings and Quality Review 
Group meetings are held with all the principal providers. A challenging Financial Recovery 
Plan (FRP) and Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) savings 
programme has been in place throughout the year. 
 
In respect of the CCG operating budget, there is an agreed staffing structure, balancing 
the roles of clinical leaders, including the Chair, Medical Director, Director of Nursing, 
Clinical Director and Clinical Leads. CCG staff are organised into three Directorates. The 
remuneration committee sets the remuneration of Very Senior Managers and Clinical 
Leaders (for whom there are no national pay scales). The Senior Management Team 
ensures that remuneration for posts in the CCG structure is in line with national guidance, 
to ensure consistency between posts.  
 
• Duty to ensure expenditure does not exceed income 

The duty to ensure expenditure does not exceed income was the greatest risk faced by the 
CCG throughout 2015/16.  In 2014/15 the closing position of the CCG was a deficit of 
£6.4m, despite close monitoring and measures to manage financial pressures. 
 
Going into 2015/16 the Governing Body was acutely aware of the financial challenges 
facing the CCG. The 2015/16 budgets showed a planned deficit position, and required the 
delivery of a substantial savings programme.  
 
To achieve the financial recovery plan through and with the membership, the CCG had 
agreed during 2015/16 to focus on four areas: 

• Managing demand  - through longer term and short term measures to deliver 
elective and non-elective demand within identified benchmarks through active 
engagement with both primary care and secondary care providers 

• Delivery of a reviewed, revised and refocused savings programme - strengthening 
QIPP programme management capacity and capability to provide sustainable 
effective, development, monitoring, reporting and support of savings delivery 

• Provider Contract Management  - engaging with providers to support QIPP delivery 
through strong contract management 
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• Whole system change - implementing at pace the agreed long term strategic 
solutions in particular across the older persons pathway and New Models of 
Primary Care 

During 2015/16 the following structures and processes were embedded to support the 
development and delivery of a sustainable financial position: 

• The Finance Committee, a committee of the Governing Body, chaired by CCG lay 
member 

• An experienced Turnaround Director came into post in March 2015 and remained 
with the CCG until mid-December 2015  

• A post of Chief Operating Officer was established in January 2016 to further 
strengthen the executive management team 

• A Project Management Office (PMO) was established in early 2015 and embedded 
into the normal working of the CCG, together with additional staff from the 
Commissioning Support Unit and increased capacity in the CCG finance function 

• The QIPP Assurance Committee (QPAC) was established to scrutinise each QIPP 
scheme and to support effective delivery of savings 

• The CCG Internal Auditor examined the PMO and QPAC arrangements and 
reported  ‘significant assurance’ on this to the CCG Chief Officer and Audit 
Committee in December 2015 

 
The Council of Practices, Governing Body, Finance Committee and Clinical Executive all 
received regular reports on the CCG budget position throughout the year. In particular, the 
Finance Committee has scrutinised the positon, aware that the CCG was heavily reliant on 
QIPP savings being delivered in the second half of the financial year.  The financial 
position of the CCG and progress against its recovery plan has been discussed at every 
meeting of the CCG Governing Body.  
 
The CCG continues to work intensively with partners and stakeholders to develop and 
implement the CCG Financial Recovery Plan (FRP). The FRP is a detailed document 
describing the historical financial position, causes for the underlying deficit and CCG plans 
over a three year period to bring the CCG back into surplus. 
 
In September 2015 the Interim Chief Finance Officer reported to the Council of Practices 
that the detailed financial review, begun in June 2015, had concluded and reported that 
the position had deteriorated. Consequently, the savings target had been revised from 
£18m to £11m and that the year-end forecast position was now a £19.3m deficit. This was 
discussed at the Governing Body development session in October 2015 and with NHS 
England. The revised forecast outturn position was formally recorded at the Governing 
Body meeting in public session in November 2015. 
 
From summer 2015 onwards, the CCG has worked with partners to develop a new 
approach to sustainable commissioning, based on an Accountable Care Organisation 
model. A robust Programme Management approach has been followed, overseen by the 
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ACO Programme Board and supported by four workstreams. At the ACO Programme 
Board meeting in March 2016 it was agreed that partners would seek the support of their 
Governing Body / Board to agree and sign a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) to 
formally work together during 2016/17 to develop an ACO for 2017/18. The purpose of the 
MoU is to document the commitment to integrating health care provision in North 
Tyneside, setting out the key principles of collaboration, governance structures and the 
respective roles and responsibilities of the parties to achieve this aim.  It is focussed on the 
agreement to develop the detail in relation to the function and scope of the ACO and a 
future CCG; developing the timetable for ACO implementation in order to tackle a number 
of significant operational, clinical and financial challenges for health and social care in 
North Tyneside.  
 
Within the ACO model, the majority of providers will work together under a single 
agreement to ensure that services are delivered in the right place at the right time by the 
right person to support the health and wellbeing of North Tyneside residents. By operating 
this this way, the ACO will be making the best use of resources to ensure high quality 
value for money services. The current mix of activity based contracts (the more people you 
see the more you get paid) and block contracts means that different part of the system 
don’t work as well as they could to support patient pathway changes and ensure that care 
is provided closer to home in the community whenever possible. 
 
Following this agreement, the CCG and its partners will continue to develop the ACO 
commissioning approach apace in 2016/17.  
 
On 9 February 2016, following the CCG reporting that its expenditure for 2015/16 would 
exceed its allocation by £19.3m, the CCG’s external auditor issued a report to the 
Secretary of State for Health under Section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014 for the anticipated breach of financial duties, as indicated in the notes to the 
accounts.  
 
The headline 2016/17 CCG budgets were considered by the Council of Practices on 16 
March 2016.  
 
 
2.1.3.7 Review of the effectiveness of Governance, Risk Management and Internal 

Control 

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control within the clinical commissioning group. 
 

2.1.3.7.1 Capacity to Handle Risk  
The Risk Management Policy describes the roles and responsibilities of the CCG directors, 
senior management team and staff members.  

• The Council of Practices has delegated responsibility to the Governing Body for 
establishing a scheme of governance  
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• The CCG Chief Officer has overall responsibility for strategic direction and 
operational management, including ensuring that CCG’s process documents 
comply with all legal, statutory and good practice guidance requirements. This is 
delegated to senior managers as follows:  

o The Director of Transformation / Executive Nurse and the Medical Director 
are together responsible for providing advice and assurance to the 
Governing Body and Clinical Executive on the quality and safety of 
commissioned services, contributing to the dialogue and challenge at the 
Governing Body and Clinical Executive 

o The Medical Director has particular responsibility for domains 1, 2 and 3 of 
the NHS Outcomes Framework. The Medical Director is the Caldicott 
Guardian for the CCG. The Medical Director brings specific medical 
expertise to the commissioning of safe and sustainable services 

o The Director of Transformation and Executive Nurse brings a broader view, 
from her perspective as a registered nurse, on health and care issues to 
underpin the work of the CCG especially the contribution of nursing to patient 
care. She has particular responsibility for domains 4 and 5 of the NHS 
Outcomes Framework. She brings specific nursing expertise to the 
commissioning of safe and sustainable services 

o The Director of Transformation and Executive Nurse leads on the 
assessment and overall management of risks pertaining to Information 
Governance, undertaking the role of Senior Information Risk Officer 

o The Chief Finance Officer has responsibility for: 

 Providing professional advice to the CCG Governing Body on the 
effective, efficient and economic use of the CCG’s financial allocation 
and to identify risks to the delivery of required financial targets and 
duties 

 Ensuring robust risk management and audit arrangements are in 
place to make appropriate use of the CCG’s financial resources 

 Ensuring appropriate arrangements are in place to identify risks and 
mitigating actions to the delivery of QIPP savings and resource-
releasing initiatives 

 Incorporating risk management as a management technique within 
the financial performance management arrangements for the 
organisation 

o The Head of Governance is the CCG’s lead for risk management and has 
responsibility for ensuring risk management systems are in place throughout 
the CCG and operating effectively 

o The Senior Leads and all staff, including agency staff, have a responsibility 
to incorporate risk management within all aspects of their work  
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2.1.3.7.2 Review of Effectiveness 
My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of 
the internal auditors and the executive managers and clinical leads within the clinical 
commissioning group who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the 
internal control framework. I have drawn on performance information available to me. My 
review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in their annual audit 
letter and other reports. 
 
The assurance framework provides me with evidence that the effectiveness of controls 
that manage risks to the clinical commissioning group achieving its objectives have been 
reviewed. 
 
I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of 
the system of internal control by the Governing Body, the Audit Committee, the Clinical 
Executive Committee and the Quality and Safety Committee and a plan to address 
weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place. 
 
The CCG directors, senior managers and staff who have responsibility for the 
development and maintenance of systems of internal control provide me with assurance. 
In addition to the responsibility for risk management within their areas of control, the CCG 
directors also have corporate responsibility as members of the CCG Governing Body.  
 
The CCG has continued to work very closely with NHS England throughout the year, 
including participating in regular assurance meetings and detailed discussions about the 
development and implementation of the Financial Recovery Plan.   
 
In particular, throughout the year, there are some key methods that the CCG uses to be 
assured that the system of internal control is effective: 
 

• The Audit Committee – the Annual Internal Audit Plan, as approved by the Audit 
Committee, enables the CCG to be assured that key internal financial controls and 
other matters relating to risk are regularly reviewed. The committee has reviewed 
Internal and External Audit Reports and has kept the Assurance Framework under 
review throughout the year 

• The Quality and Safety Committee – this committee provides assurance to the 
Governing Body that there are adequate controls in place to ensure the CCG is 
delivering on its statutory and non-statutory clinical duties and responsibilities 

• The Finance Committee – established as a committee of the Governing Body in 
January 2015 to oversee the current and projected financial position of the CCG 
and work on the financial recovery plan to provide assurance to the Governing Body 

Assurances from outsourced services have all been satisfactory in 2015/16, as reported in 
earlier in this report.  
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2.1.3.7.3 Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
Following completion of the planned audit work for the financial year for the clinical 
commissioning group, the Head of Internal Audit issued an independent and objective 
opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the clinical commissioning group’s system of 
risk management, governance and internal control. The Head of Internal Audit concluded 
that significant assurance can be given.  
 
The Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
 
The purpose of my annual Head of Internal Audit Opinion is to contribute to the 
assurances available to the Accountable Officer and the Governing Body which underpin 
the CCG’s own assessment of the effectiveness of the organisation’s system of internal 
control. This Opinion will in turn assist the CCG in the completion of its Annual 
Governance Statement. 
 
My opinion is set out as follows: 
 

1. Overall opinion; 
2. Basis for the opinion; 
3. Commentary. 

 
My overall opinion is that significant assurance can be given that there is a generally 
sound system of internal control, designed to meet the organisation’s objectives, and that 
controls are generally being applied consistently. Some weakness in the design and/or 
inconsistent application of controls may put the achievement of particular objectives at risk; 
however, no risks have been identified with an impact rating above moderate. 
 
The basis for forming my opinion is as follows: 
 
1. An assessment of the design and operation of the underpinning Assurance 

Framework and supporting processes; 
 
2. An assessment of the range of individual opinions arising from audit assignments, 

contained within internal audit risk-based plans that have been reported throughout 
the year. This assessment has taken account of the relative materiality of these 
areas and management’s progress in respect of addressing control weaknesses. 

 

• 2015/16 Internal audit reports  
All Internal Audit reports issued to cover the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 had 
significant assurance. There were no reports with a conclusion of limited or no assurance  
 

2.1.3.7.4 Data Quality 
The CCG has a data quality policy. This policy defines data and explains data standards 
and the importance of data validation.  
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Robust data is provided to the Council of Practices, the Governing Body and other 
committees of the CCG. In the self-assessment the Audit Committee confirmed that the 
quality of data and information presented is acceptable.  
 

2.1.3.7.5 Business Critical Models 
The CCG has a Business Continuity Management Plan, approved by the Quality and 
Safety Committee in September 2015. The CCG does not have any business critical 
models.  
 

2.1.3.7.6 Data Security 
We have submitted a satisfactory level of compliance with the information governance 
toolkit assessment. 
 
During the period 1 April 2015 to the date of this report there have been no Serious 
Untoward Incidents in the CCG relating to data security breaches and nothing that has 
required the CCG to report to the Information Commissioner.  
 
The CCG complies with its statutory duty to respond to requests for information. During the 
period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 the CCG received 239 requests under the Freedom 
of Information (FoI) Act 2000 and one request under the Data Protection Act 1998.  All the 
requests were responded to within the statutory timescales. Eleven requests had 
exemptions applied: two under Section 12 of the FoI Act 2000 (exceeds appropriate limit), 
four under Section 43 of the FoI Act 2000 (commercial interests), one under Section 22 of 
the FoI Act 2000 (information intended for future publication) and four under Section 21 of 
the FoI Act 2000 (information accessible to applicants by other means).   
 

2.1.3.7.7 Discharge of Statutory Functions 
Arrangements put in place by the clinical commissioning group and explained within the 
corporate governance framework have been developed with expert external legal input, to 
ensure compliance with the all relevant legislation. That legal advice also informed the 
matters reserved for the Council of Practices and Governing Body decisions and the 
scheme of delegation. 
 
In light of the Harris Review, the clinical commissioning group reviewed all of the statutory 
duties and powers conferred on it by the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) 
and other associated legislative and regulations.  As a result, I can confirm that the clinical 
commissioning group is clear about the legislative requirements associated with each of 
the statutory functions for which it is responsible, including any restrictions on delegation of 
those functions. 
 
Responsibility for each duty and power has been clearly allocated to a lead Director.  
Directorates have confirmed that their structures provide the necessary capability and 
capacity to undertake all of the clinical commissioning group’s statutory duties. 
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• NHS England Assurance Framework 
In addition to the assurances provided by management processes, the work of the Internal 
Auditors and External Auditors and oversight of the Governing Body and CCG committees, 
the CCG is subject to the national assurance process. The CCG has regular dialogue with 
the NHS England Area Team and participates in the formal assurance process. The CCG 
was assessed as ‘not assured’ for Quarters 1, 2 and 3 and remains ‘not assured.’ The 
assurance level will not improve until the CCG meets it statutory financial duties.  
 
The CCG has recently worked with NHS England on a capacity and capability review. An 
action plan is being prepared to implement the recommendations of that review.  
 

• Section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 
Under the Health and Social Care Act 2012 (amending the 2006 NHS Act), CCGs are 
required to ensure that their capital and revenue resource use in a financial year does not 
exceed the amount specified by the NHS Commissioning Board (NHS England).  
 
In the year ending 31 March 2016 NHS North Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group 
failed to meet its statutory financial target to ensure expenditure does not exceed income. 
The CCG total revenue resource allocation for 2015/16 was £301.2m and total spend was 
£320.5m, resulting in a deficit of £19.3m.  
 
On 9 February 2016, following the CCG reporting that its expenditure for 2015/16 would 
exceed its allocation by £19.3 million, the CCG’s external auditor issued a report to the 
Secretary of State for Health under Section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014 for the anticipated breach of financial duties, as indicated in the notes to the 
accounts.  
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2.1.3.7.8 Conclusion 

The system of control described in this report has been in place in the CCG for the year 
ended 31 March 2016 and up to the date of the approval of the annual report and 
accounts. 
 
The work undertaken in 2015/16 across the range of assurance providers to the CCG has 
shown that: 

• The CCG failed to meet its statutory duty to ensure expenditure does not exceed 
income 

• The Head of Internal Audit concluded an overall Opinion of ‘significant assurance’ 

 
I have concluded that the CCG did have a generally sound system of internal control in 
place continuously throughout the year, designed to meet the organisation’s objectives 
and that the controls are being applied consistently.  
 
 
 
 
 
Jim Hayburn 
Interim Chief Officer and Accounting Officer 
24 May 2016  
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2.2. Remuneration and staff report 
 
The remuneration and staff report gives details of CCG staff and remuneration. It sets out 
the CCG’s remuneration policy for directors and senior managers, reports on how that 
policy has been implemented and sets out the amounts awarded to directors and senior 
managers and where relevant the link between performance and remuneration.  
 
2.2.1. Remuneration policy 

The remuneration committee was established to advise the Governing Body about pay, 
other benefits and terms of employment for the Chief Officer and other senior staff. The 
committee is comprised entirely of independent members. Details of remuneration 
committee membership, meeting frequency, items of business and meeting attendance 
are given in the Governance Statement (section 2.1.3 of this report). 
 
The remuneration committee has delegated authority from the Governing Body to make 
recommendations on determinations about pay and remuneration for employees of the 
CCG and people who provide services to the CCG. The remuneration for senior managers 
for current and future financial years is determined in accordance with relevant guidance, 
best practice and national policy.  
 
Continuation of employment for all senior managers is subject to satisfactory performance. 
Performance in post and progress in achieving set objectives is reviewed annually. There 
were no individual performance review payments made to any senior managers during the 
year and there are no plans to make such payments in future years out with the ‘Very 
Senior Management Pay Framework’. This is in accordance with standard NHS terms and 
conditions of service and guidance issued by the Department of Health.  
 
Contracts of employment in relation to all senior managers employed by the CCG are 
permanent in nature and subject to six months’ notice of termination by either party. At the 
start of 2015/16 the GP Chair and Senior Managers were not directly employed by the 
CCG, with their services provided through separate agreements between the CCG and the 
respective GP practices i.e. the individuals were remunerated off-payroll. From August 
2015 this arrangement changed and the lead GPs are all now employees of the CCG.  
 
Termination payments are limited to those laid down in statute and those provided for 
within NHS terms and conditions of service and under the NHS Pension Scheme 
Regulations for those who are members of the scheme. No awards have been made 
during the year to past senior managers. 
  
 
2.2.2. Remuneration report tables 

Salaries and allowances 
The remuneration figures are given in the tables below. 
 

Page 61 of 78 
 



NHS North Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group annual report and accounts 2015/16 

The figures in the tables relate to all those individuals who hold or who have held office as 
a senior manager in the CCG during 2015/16. 
 
The definition of a senior manager in the CCG is in accordance with the guidance provided 
in the Department of Health Group Manual for Accounts (2015). It is ‘those persons in 
senior positions having authority or responsibility for directing or controlling the major 
activities of the CCG, which are those who influence the decisions of the CCG as a whole 
rather than the decisions of individual directorates or departments’.  
 
This definition covers all members of the CCG Governing Body, the CCG senior managers 
in regular attendance at the Governing Body (including those appointed in an interim 
capacity) and the Clinical Directors.  
 
Notes to salaries and allowances shown in table 16 below:  
 
Comparative information for the prior year is disclosed in the tables.  
 
The following individuals were not directly employed by the CCG until August 2015, hence 
part of the amounts here disclosed were paid to the respective GP practice to provide the 
services of the individuals on a sessional basis: 
 
Dr Ruth Evans Dr John Matthews  
Dr Shaun Lackey Dr Martin Wright 
  
As indicated in the members report the following post holders held office at North Tyneside 
CCG for only part of the year in 2015/16: 
 
Phil Clow Jonathan Molyneux John Wicks 
Jim Hayburn Rob Robertson Robert Wiggins 
Deborah Hayman Alison Thompson  
 
The following post holders held office on a less than full time basis at North Tyneside CCG 
during 2015/16: 
 
Mary Coyle Jim Hayburn David Willis 
Ruth Evans Eleanor Hayward Martin Wright 
Pauline Fox Shaun Lackey  
Kyee Han John Matthews  
 
During April 2015 Rob Robertson, Chief Finance Officer at Northumberland CCG received 
remuneration from Northumberland CCG for a part-time assignment as Interim CFO at 
North Tyneside CCG. No recharge was made by Northumberland CCG to North Tyneside 
CCG as services of a similar value were received by Northumberland CCG from other 
officers of North Tyneside CCG.  
 
The Acting Director of Public Health, Wendy Burke, is not employed by the CCG and 
receives no remuneration from the CCG for her CCG Governing Body role.  
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Table 16: North Tyneside CCG single total remuneration table 2015/16 (this has been subjected to audit) 

Name Title Salary  
 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

 
 
 
 

£000 

Expenses 
payments 

(taxable) to 
nearest £100 

 
 
 
 

£00 

Performanc
e pay and 
bonuses  

 
(bands of 

£5,000) 
 
 

£000 

Long-term 
performance 

pay and 
bonuses  

 
(bands of 

£5,000) 
 

£000 

All pension 
related 

benefits  
 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

 
 

£000 

Total  
 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

 
 
 
 

£000 
Dr John Matthews  GP & Clinical Chair 75-80 - - - 125-127.5 205-210 

Maurya Cushlow * Chief Officer 120-125 71 - - 5-7.5 135-140 

Mary Coyle Deputy Lay Chair 10-15 - - - - 10-15 

David Willis Lay Member (audit and 
governance) 10-15 - - - - 10-15 

Eleanor Hayward Lay Member (patient & 
public involvement) 5-10 - - - - 5-10 

Kyee Han Secondary Care Doctor 5-10 - - - - 5-10 

Dr Lesley Young-
Murphy 

Executive Director of 
Nursing and 
Transformation 

95-100 - - - 7.5-10 105-110 

Alison Thompson Chief Finance Officer 55-60 - - - 0-2.5 55-60 

Rob Robertson $  Interim Chief Finance 
Officer - - - - - - 

Jonathan Molyneux Interim Chief Finance 
Officer 175-180 - - - - 175-180 

Deborah Hayman Interim Chief Finance 
Officer 130-135 - - - - 130-135 

Dr Martin Wright GP & Medical Director 75-80 - - - 102.5-105 180-185 

Phil Clow Director of Commissioning 
Development 35-40 33 - - 12.5-15 55-60 

Dr Ruth Evans GP & Clinical Director 65-70 - - - 7.5-10 75-80 

Dr Shaun Lackey GP & Clinical Director 60-65 - - - 5-7.5 65-70 

Pauline Fox Head of Governance 45-50 - - - 15-17.5 65-70 

Robert Wiggins  Director of CCG 
Turnaround 260-265 - - - - 260-265 
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Name Title Salary  
 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

 
 
 
 

£000 

Expenses 
payments 

(taxable) to 
nearest £100 

 
 
 
 

£00 

Performanc
e pay and 
bonuses  

 
(bands of 

£5,000) 
 
 

£000 

Long-term 
performance 

pay and 
bonuses  

 
(bands of 

£5,000) 
 

£000 

All pension 
related 

benefits  
 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

 
 

£000 

Total  
 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

 
 
 
 

£000 
Jim Hayburn Interim Chief Officer 65-70 - - - - 65-70 

John Wicks Interim Chief Operating 
Officer 5-10 - - - - 5-10 

Expenses payments (taxable) are shown in £00 and all relate to lease cars 
All pensions related benefits information is provided by NHS Pensions  
 
* this includes a car allowance of £6k for 2015/16 and backdated increase of £1k for 2013/14 and 2014/15, both amounts which were paid in 2015/16 

  $ the post holder did not receive any remuneration from North Tyneside CCG for a part-time assignment as Interim CFO at North Tyneside CCG during April 2015 
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Table 17: North Tyneside CCG remuneration report 2014/15 (this has been subjected to audit): 

Name  Title Salary & 
Fees 

Taxable 
Benefits 

Annual 
Performance 

Related Bonuses 
 

Long-term 
Performance 

Related Bonuses 

All 
Pension 
Related 

Benefits 

Total 

    (bands 
of 

£5,000) 

(Rounded to 
the nearest 

£00) 

(bands of £5,000) (bands of £5,000) (bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

 

 
 £000 £00 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Dr John Matthews ~ GP & Clinical Chair 75 - 80 - - - - 75 - 80 
Maurya Cushlow * Chief Officer 120-125 64 - - - 130-135 
Mary Coyle ~ Deputy Lay Chair 10 - 15 - - - - 10 - 15 
David Willis ~ Lay Member (audit and governance) 10 -15 - - - - 10 - 15 
Eleanor Hayward ~ Lay Member (patient and public involvement) 5 - 10 - - - - 5 - 10 
Kyee Han ~ Secondary Care Doctor 5 - 10 - - - - 5 - 10 
Dr Lesley Young-Murphy Director of Transformation and Executive Nurse 95 - 100 2 - - 2.5 - 5 100 - 105 
Alison Thompson ^ Chief Finance Officer 80 - 85 - - - 15 – 17.5 100 - 105 
Rob Robertson $ Interim Chief Finance Officer - - - - - - 
Dr Martin Wright ~ GP & Medical Director 75 - 80 - - - - 75 - 80 
Phil Clow Director of Commissioning Development 80 - 85 14 - - 0 – 2.5 80 - 85 
Dr Ruth Evans ~ GP & Clinical Director 55 - 60 - - - -  55 - 60 
Dr Shaun Lackey ~ GP & Clinical Director 50 - 55 - - - - 50 - 55 
Dr Caroline Sprake ~ GP & Clinical Director 25 - 30 - - - - 25 - 30 
Pauline Fox ~ Head of Governance 45 - 50 - - - 7.5 - 10 55 - 60 
Robert Wiggins Director of CCG Turnaround 30 - 35 - - - - 30 - 35 

 
Taxable benefits are shown in £00 and all relate to lease cars.  
All pensions related benefits information is provided by NHS Pensions. Clarification and confirmation of reported values has been requested from NHS Pensions  
~ indicates post holders with less than a full time commitment to the CCG 
* This includes a car allowance of £5k owed for 2013/14 and 2014/15, both amounts which were paid in 2014/15 
^ post holder on secondment from January 2015 but remained on the CCG payroll 
$ The post holder did not receive any remuneration from North Tyneside CCG for a part-time assignment as Interim CFO at North Tyneside CCG during 2014/15 
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2.2.3. Pensions entitlement table 
Table 18:  North Tyneside CCG senior officers pension benefits 2015/16 (this has been subjected to audit) 

Name and title Real increase 
in pension at 
pension age 

 
 
 
 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

£000 

Real increase 
in pension 

lump sum at 
pension age 

 
 
 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

£000 

Total accrued 
pension at 

pension age 
at 31 March 

2016 
 
 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

£000 

Lump sum at 
pension age 

related to 
accrued 

pension at 31 
March 2016 

 
(bands of 

£5,000) 
£000 

Cash 
Equivalent 

Transfer 
Value at 1 
April 2015 

 
 
 
 

£000 

Real Increase 
in Cash 

Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value 
 
 
 
 

£000 

Cash 
Equivalent 

Transfer 
Value at 31 
March 2016 

 
 
 
 

£000 

Employer’s 
contribution 

on to 
stakeholder 

pension 
 
 
 
 

£000 
Maurya Cushlow 
Chief Officer 0-2.5 0-2.5 45-50 140-145 807 24 830 16 

Phil Clow 
Director of 
Commissioning 
Development 

0-2.5 - 15-20 45-50 226 2 231 5 

Dr Ruth Evans 
Clinical Director 0-2.5 - 5-10 15-20 121 13 134 7 

Pauline Fox 
Head of Governance 0-2.5 2.5-5 20-25 65-70 395 23 418 7 

Dr Shaun Lackey 
Clinical Director 0-2.5 - 5-10 15-20 120 10 129 6 

Dr John Matthews 
Clinical Chair 5-7.5 15-17.5 5-10 15-20 29 105 134 7 

Alison Thompson 
Chief Finance Office 0-2.5 - 0-5 - 35 - 37 2 

Dr Martin Wright 
Medical Director  2.5-5 12.5-15 5-10 20-25 56 96 152 7 

Dr Lesley Young-
Murphy 
Executive Director of 
Nursing and 
Transformation 

0-2.5 2.5-5 20-25 60-65 404 24 427 14 

 
Note to table 18: cash equivalent transfer value at 1 April 2015 has been inflated by 1.2% 
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Table 19:  North Tyneside CCG senior officers pension benefits 2014/15 (this has been subjected to audit) 

Name and Title Real 
increase in 
pension at 

age 60 
 

Real increase 
in Pension 

Lump Sum at 
aged 60 

 

Total 
accrued 

pension at 
age 60 at 31 
March 2015 

 

Lump Sum at 
aged 60 related 

to accrued 
pension at 31 

March 2015  

Cash 
Equivalent 

Transfer Value 
at 31 March 

2014 

Cash 
Equivalent 

Transfer Value 
at 31 March 

2015 

Real increase 
in cash 

equivalent 
transfer value 

Employer’s 
contribution to 

partnership 
pension 

 (bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

    

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Maurya Cushlow 
Chief Officer 0 - 2.5 0 – 2.5 45 – 50 135 – 140 749 797 28 16 

Phil Clow 
Director of 
Commissioning 
Development 

0 – 2.5 0 – 2.5 15 – 20 50 – 55 205 224 13 11 

Pauline Fox 
Head of 
Governance 

0 – 2.5 0 – 2.5 20 – 25 60 – 65 359 391 22 7 

Alison Thompson 
Chief Finance 
Officer 

0 – 2.5 0 – 2.5 0 – 5 0 17 34 16 12 

Lesley Young-
Murphy 
Director of 
Transformation 
and Change 

0 – 2.5 0 – 2.5 20 – 25 60 – 65 364 399 25 14 

 
 

Page 67 of 78 
 



NHS North Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group annual report and accounts 2015/16 

Cash equivalent transfer values 
A cash equivalent transfer value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the 
pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits 
valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable 
from the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to 
secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member 
leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefit accrued in their former scheme. The 
pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a 
consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a 
senior capacity to which disclosure applies. The CETV figures and the other pension 
details include the value of any pension benefits in another scheme or arrangement which 
the individual has transferred to the NHS Pension Scheme. They also include any 
additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing additional 
years of pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the 
guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.  
 
On 16 March 2016, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced a change in the 
Superannuation Contributions Adjusted for Past Experience (SCAPE) discount rate from 
3.0% to 2.8%. This rate affects the calculation of CETV figures in this report.  Due to the 
lead time required to perform calculations and prepare annual reports, the CETV figures 
quoted in this report for members of the NHS Pension scheme are based on the previous 
discount rate and have not been recalculated. 
 
Real increase in cash equivalent transfer values  
This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of 
the increase in accrued pension due to inflation and uses common market valuation 
factors for the start and end of the period. 
 
2.2.4. Compensation on early retirement or for loss of office  

This has been subjected to audit. 
 
The CCG has not made any payment for compensation on early retirement or for loss of 
office in 2015/16. 
 
2.2.5. Fair pay (ratios) disclosure  

This has been subjected to audit. 
 
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the 
highest-paid director in their organisation and the median remuneration of the 
organisation's workforce. 
 
The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in North Tyneside CCG in the 
financial year 2015/16 was £130 – 135k (2014/15 £130 – 135k). This was 2.8 times 
(2014/15, 3.4) the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £47,559 (2014/15, 
£38,586). 
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In 2015/16, no employee (2014/15, no employee) received remuneration in excess of the 
highest paid director. Remuneration for employees ranged from £15,786 to £98,453 
(2013/14 £15,013 to £98,610). 
 
Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay and 
benefits-in-kind. It does not include severance payments, employer pension contributions 
and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions. 
 
Table 20: Pay multiples (this has been subjected to audit) 

 2015/16 2014/15 
Band of highest paid director’s total remuneration (£’000) 130-135 130-135 
Median total remuneration (£) 47,559 38,586 
Ratio 2.8 3.4 
 
The median remuneration is calculated on an annualised basis. The increase in median 
total remuneration reported in 2015/16 is due to the increase in the number of clinical staff 
working on a part time basis and remunerated through the CCG payroll in 2015/16. 
 
 
2.2.6. Staff report 

Numbers 
This has been subjected to audit. 
 
As at 31 March 2016 the CCG had 46 employees.  
 
Composition (by gender) 
This has been subjected to audit. 
 
The CCG staff gender profile is given in the table below. This reflects our gender 
representation on the Governing Body, Very Senior Manager (VSM) staff and all CCG 
staff.  Where the CCG VSMs and Governing Body members are CCG employees they are 
included in all the relevant rows of figures in this table.  
 
Table 21: North Tyneside CCG staff gender profile as at 31 March 2016  

 Male Female 
Governing Body Members1 6 7 
VSM (including interim post holders) 2 3 
CCG employees 16 30 
1. This figure includes substantive voting and non-voting members and interim senior managers of the Governing Body, as listed in the 
Accountability Report.  

 
The CCG can demonstrate fair and equitable recruitment, workforce engagement and 
employment terms and conditions to ensure levels of pay and related terms and conditions 
are fairly determined for all posts, with staff doing equal work, and work rated as of equal 
value, being entitled to equal pay. 
  

Page 69 of 78 
 



NHS North Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group annual report and accounts 2015/16 

Sickness absence data 
The notes to the financial statements refer to sickness absence. The CCG has an agreed 
policy on the management of staff absence (policy HR02) which ensures all staff are 
treated fairly and equitably, with the relevant support from line managers and HR advisors. 
The CCG has access to occupational health services.  
 
Staff policies 
The CCG has a suite of staff policies in place. The CCG has taken positive steps 
throughout the year to maintain and develop the provision of information to, and 
consultation with employees, including: 

• Providing employees systematically with information on matters of concern to them 
as employees 

• Consulting employees and their representatives on a regular basis so that the views 
of employees can be taken into account in making decisions which are likely to 
affect their interests 

• Encouraging the involvement of employees in the CCG’s performance  

• Taking actions throughout the year to achieve a common awareness on the part of 
all employees of the financial and economic factors affecting the performance of the 
CCG 

• Membership of the North East Partnership Forum, where staff representatives and 
CCG managers from across the region meet together 

 
The CCG has a positive attitude to recruitment, employment, training and development of 
disabled persons. The CCG has successfully renewed its accreditation as a Two Tick 
Disability employer for 2016. The symbol, awarded by Jobcentre Plus, demonstrates our 
commitment to employ, retain and develop the abilities of disabled staff.  
 
Consultancy expenditure 
Consultancy expenditure in 2015/16 was £56k. 
 
Very Senior Manager Remuneration  
On 2 June 2015 the Secretary of State wrote to chairs of Clinical Commissioning Groups 
about the pay of Very Senior Managers (VSMs). Where one or more senior managers of a 
CCG is paid more than £142,500 per annum on a pro-rata basis, equivalent to the Prime 
Minister’s salary, information is disclosed in the remuneration report. During 2015/16 North 
Tyneside CCG had nine senior managers who were paid more than £142,500 per annum 
on a pro-rata basis.   
 
Off-payroll engagements 
As at 31 March 2016, the CCG off-payroll engagements, for more than £220 per day and 
that have lasted longer than six months are indicated in the table below.  
 
Payments to GP practices for the services of GPs and Practice Managers are deemed to 
be ‘off-payroll.’ The ten arrangements, as reported in table 22, all fall into that category, 
where the individual is a clinical lead or committee member.  
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Table 22: Off payroll engagements as at 31 March 2016, for more than £220 per day and that have lasted longer 
than 6 months 

 Number 
Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2016 10 
Of which, the number that have existed  

For less than one year at the time of reporting 1 
For between one and two years at the time of reporting 2 
For between 2 and 3 years at the time of reporting 7 
For between 3 and 4 years at the time of reporting 0 
For 4 or more years at the time of reporting 0 

 
Off-payroll engagements, as outlined above, have at some point been subject to a risk-
based assessment as to whether assurance is required that the individual is paying the 
right amount of tax and, where necessary, that assurance has been sought, as indicated in 
table below.   
 
Table 23: New off-payroll engagements between 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016, for more than £220 per day and 
that last longer than 6 months 

 Number 
Number of new engagements, or those that reached six 
months in duration, between 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 13 

Number of the above which included contractual clauses 
giving North Tyneside CCG the right to request assurance in 
relation to Income Tax and National Insurance obligations  

13 

Number for whom assurance has been requested 6 
Of which:   
• assurance has been received 6 
• assurance has not been received 0 
• engagements terminated as a result of assurance not being 

received 
0 

 
The CCG had off-payroll engagements with some Governing Body members and/or senior 
officials with significant financial responsibilities between 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016, 
as reported in the table below.  
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Table 24: Off pay-roll engagements of CCG Governing Body members and Senior Managers between 1 April 
2015 and 31 March 2016 

 Number 
Number of off-payroll engagement of Governing Body members 
and of senior officers with a significant financial responsibility 
during the financial year 

9 

Number of individuals that have been deemed to be Governing 
Body members and/or senior officers with a significant financial 
responsibility during the financial year (this figure includes both 
off-payroll and on-payroll engagements) 

19 

 
The figures in tables 23 and table 24 include all members of the CCG Governing Body and 
the Clinical Directors, as listed in the Accountability Report. The local authority Acting 
Director of Public Health received no remuneration from the CCG and is not included in 
these figures.  
 
There are nine individuals listed in the off-payroll figure in table 24: 
• 4 were GPs who were off payroll until August 2015 and on payroll thereafter 

• 2 were interim Chief Finance Officers, one from May to October 2015 and one from 
October 2015 to date 

• 1 was the Director of Turnaround, who left in December 2015  

• 1 is the Interim Chief Officer and  

• 1 is the Interim Chief Operating officer 

To aid clarity, the position as at 1 April 2016 is reported in the table below.  
 
Table 25: Off pay-roll engagements of CCG Governing Body members and Senior Managers as at 1 April 2016 

 Number 
Number of off-payroll engagement of Governing Body members 
and of senior officers with a significant financial responsibility as 
at 1 April 2016 

3 

Number of individuals deemed to be Governing Body members 
and or senior officers with a significant financial responsibility as 
at 1 April 2016 (this figure includes both off-payroll and on-
payroll engagements) 

13 

 
There are 3 individuals listed in the off-payroll figure in table 25, the Interim Chief Finance 
Officer, the Interim Chief Officer and the Interim Chief Operating Officer. 
 
 
Exit packages, including special (non-contractual) payments  
This has been subjected to audit. 
 
The CCG has made one payment of contractual notice due to an employee as an exit 
package. The CCG has not made any special (non-contractual) payments in 2015/16 or up 
to the time of this report.   
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3. Financial statements 
3.1. Independent auditor’s report to the Governing Body of NHS North 

Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group 
 
We have audited the financial statements of NHS North Tyneside Clinical Commissioning 
Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014. The financial statements comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Net 
Expenditure, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ 
Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes. The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and as 
interpreted and adapted by the 2015-16 Government Financial Reporting Manual (the 
2015-16 FReM) as contained in the Department of Health Group Manual for Accounts 
2015-16 (the 2015-16 MfA) and the Accounts Direction issued by the NHS Commissioning 
Board with the approval of the Secretary of State as relevant to the National Health 
Service in England (the Accounts Direction). 
 
We have also audited the information in the Remuneration and Staff Report that is 
described as being subject to audit. 
 
This report is made solely to the members of the Governing Body of NHS North Tyneside 
Clinical Commissioning Group, as a body, in accordance with part 5 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of 
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
members of the Governing Body of the CCG those matters we are required to state to 
them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Governing Body of the 
CCG, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed. 
 
Respective responsibilities of the Accountable Officer and auditor 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities, the 
Accountable Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for 
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view and is also responsible for ensuring the 
regularity of expenditure and income. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion 
on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards 
on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing 
Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors. We are also responsible for giving an 
opinion on the regularity of expenditure and income in accordance with the Code of Audit 
Practice prepared by the Comptroller and Auditor General as required by the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014 (the "Code of Audit Practice"). 
 
As explained in the Annual Governance Statement the Accountable officer is responsible 
for the arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of the 
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CCG's resources. We are required under Section 21(1)(c) of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the CCG has made proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. Section 21(5)(b) of 
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 requires that our report must not contain our 
opinion if we are satisfied that proper arrangements are in place. 
 
We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the 
CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources are operating effectively. 
 
Scope of the audit of the financial statements 
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes assessing:  

• Whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the CCG’s circumstances and 
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed  

• The reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Accountable 
Officer; and  

• The overall presentation of the financial statements 

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to 
identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any 
information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, 
the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of 
any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for 
our report. 
 
In addition, we are required to obtain evidence sufficient to give reasonable assurance that 
the expenditure and income reported in the financial statements have been applied to the 
purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities 
which govern them. 
 
Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources 
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having 
regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor 
General in November 2015, as to whether the CCG had proper arrangements to ensure it 
took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and 
sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor 
General determined this criterion as that necessary for us to consider under the Code of 
Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the CCG put in place proper arrangements 
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year 
ended 31 March 2016. 
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk 
assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on 
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whether, in all significant respects, the CCG had put in place proper arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 
 
Opinion on the financial statements 
In our opinion the financial statements: 

• Give a true and fair view of the financial position of NHS North Tyneside Clinical 
Commissioning Group as at 31 March 2016 and of its net expenditure and income 
for the year then ended; and 

• Have been properly prepared in accordance with the Health and Social Care Act 
2012 and the Accounts Directions issued thereunder 

 
Opinion on regularity  
As disclosed in note 41 of its financial statements, the CCG failed to meet its statutory 
duties under: 

• Section 223H(1) of the NHS Act 2006 (as amended) to ensure expenditure did not 
exceed income in 2015/16;  

• Section 223I(3) of the NHS Act 2006 (as amended) to ensure revenue resource use 
does not exceed the amount specified in the Direction; and 

• Section 223J(3) of the NHS Act 2006 (as amended) to ensure administration 
resource use does not exceed the amount specified in the Direction 

Except for the incurrence of expenditure in excess of the specified targets, in our opinion, 
in all material respects the expenditure and income reflected in the financial statements 
have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions 
conform to the authorities which govern them. 
 
Opinion on other matters 
In our opinion: 

• The parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report to be audited have been properly 
prepared in accordance with the Annual Report Directions made under the National 
Health Service Act 2006 (as amended by the Health and Social Care Act 2012); 
and 

• The other information published together with the audited financial statements in the 
annual report and accounts is consistent with the financial statements 

 
Matters on which we report by exception 
We are required to report to you if: 

• In our opinion the governance statement does not comply with the guidance issued 
by the NHS England; or 

• We issue a report in the public interest under section 24, schedule 7 of the Local 
Audit and Accountability Act 2014; or 

• We make a written recommendation to the CCG under section 24, schedule 7 of the 
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 
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We have nothing to report in these respects. 
 
Exception reports 
 
Referral the Secretary of State under section 30 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 
We are required to report to you if we refer a matter to the Secretary of State under section 
30 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 because we have reason to believe that 
the CCG, or an officer of the CCG, is about to make, or has made, a decision which 
involves or would involve the body incurring unlawful expenditure, or is about to take, or 
has begun to take a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion , would be unlawful 
and likely to cause a loss or deficiency. 
 
On 9 February 2016, we issued a report to the Secretary of State for Health under section 
30 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, for the breach of financial duties under: 

• Section 223H(1) of the NHS Act 2006 (as amended) to ensure expenditure did not 
exceed income in 2015/16;  

• Section 223I(3) of the NHS Act 2006 (as amended) to ensure revenue resource use 
does not exceed the amount specified in the Direction; and 

• Section 223J(3) of the NHS Act 2006 (as amended) to ensure administration 
resource use does not exceed the amount specified in the Direction. 

 

Conclusion on the CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources 
We are required to report to you if we are not satisfied that the CCG has made proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 
for the year ended 31 March 2016. 
 
Basis for qualified (except for) conclusion 
The CCG reported a deficit of £19.3 million in its financial statements for the year ending 
31 March 2016, as a result of this the CCG breached its statutory duties under: 

• Section 223H(1) of the NHS Act 2006 (as amended) to ensure expenditure did not 
exceed income in 2015/16;  

• Section 223I(3) of the NHS Act 2006 (as amended) to ensure revenue resource use 
does not exceed the amount specified in the Direction; and 

• Section 223J(3) of the NHS Act 2006 (as amended) to ensure administration 
resource use does not exceed the amount specified in the Direction. 

The CGG has not yet succeeded in addressing the deficit in its budget and is forecasting a 
cumulative deficit of £19.3 million for 2016/17. Current plans identify that the CCG is 
unlikely to return to financial balance until 2018/19. 
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This is evidence of issues in relation to proper arrangements for planning finances 
effectively to support the sustainable delivery of strategic priorities and maintain statutory 
functions. 
 
Qualified conclusion (except for) 
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and 
Auditor General in November 2015, with the exception of the matters reported in the basis 
for qualified conclusion paragraphs above, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, 
NHS North Tyneside CCG put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2016. 
 
Certificate 
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of NHS North Tyneside 
Clinical Commissioning Group in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice. 
 
 
 
 
Cameron Waddell 
For and on behalf of Mazars LLP 
Rivergreen Centre 
Aykley Heads 
Durham 
DH1 5TS 
25 May 2016 
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3.2. Appendix one: full annual accounts 
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Entity name: NHS North Tyneside CCG
This year 2015-16
This year ended 31-March-2016
This year commencing: 01-April-2015

These account templates are a proforma for a set of NHS England Group Entity Accounts, this is not a 
mandatory layout for local accounts.

Please review and adjust to local reporting requirements
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Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended
31-March-2016

2015-16 2014-15
Note £000 £000

Total Income and Expenditure
Employee benefits 4.1 3,387 2,265
Operating expenses 5 317,411 304,919
Other operating revenue 2 (299) (54)
Total net operating expenditure for the financial year 320,499 307,130

Of which:
Administration Income and Expenditure
Employee benefits 4.1 2,887 2,265
Operating expenses 5 2,708 3,008
Other operating revenue 2 (21) (54)
Net administration costs before interest 5,574 5,219

Programme Income and Expenditure
Employee benefits 4.1 500 0
Operating expenses 5 314,703 301,911
Other operating revenue 2 (278) 0
Net programme expenditure before interest 314,925 301,911

2015-16 2014-15
£000 £000

Total comprehensive net expenditure for the year 320,499 307,130

The notes on pages 8 to 11 form part of this statement
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Statement of Financial Position as at
31-March-2016

Note 2015-16 2014-15
£000 £000

Current assets:
Trade and other receivables 17 3,372 5,791
Cash and cash equivalents 20 90 109
Total current assets 3,462 5,900

Total assets 3,462 5,900

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 23 (18,510) (21,995)
Total current liabilities (18,510) (21,995)

Total assets employed (15,048) (16,095)

Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity
General fund (15,048) (16,095)
Total taxpayers' equity: (15,048) (16,095)

The notes on pages 16 to 18 form part of this statement

The financial statements on pages 1 to 4 were approved by the Governing Body on 24 May 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

Chief Accountable Officer
Jim Hayburn
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Statement of Changes In Taxpayers' Equity for the year ended
31-March-2016

General fund
Total 

reserves
£000 £000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2015-16

Balance at 1 April 2015 (16,095) (16,095)

Changes in CCG taxpayers’ equity for 2015-16
Net operating expenditure for the financial year SOCNE (320,499) (320,499)

Net Recognised CCG Expenditure for the Financial  Year (320,499) (320,499)

Net funding SCF 321,546 321,546

Balance at 31 March 2016 (15,048) (15,048)

General fund
Total 

reserves
£000 £000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2014-15

Balance at 1 April 2014 (10,843) (10,843)

Changes in CCG taxpayers’ equity for 2014-15
Net operating expenditure for the financial year SOCNE (307,130) (307,130)

Net Recognised CCG Expenditure for the Financial  Year (307,130) (307,130)
Net funding SCF 301,878 301,878

Balance at 31 March 2015 (16,095) (16,095)

The notes on pages 1 to 4 form part of this statement
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
31-March-2016

2015-16 2014-15
Note £000 £000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net operating expenditure for the financial year SOCNE (320,499) (307,130)
(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables 17 2,419 (1,327)
Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables 23 (3,485) 6,635
Net Cash (Outflow) from Operating Activities (321,565) (301,822)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Grant in Aid Funding Received 321,546 301,878
Net Cash Inflow from Financing Activities 321,546 301,878

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 20 (19) 56

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year 20 109 53

Cash & Cash Equivalents (including bank overdrafts) at the End of the Financial Year 90 109

The notes on pages 16 to 18 form part of this statement
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies
NHS England has directed that the financial statements of clinical commissioning groups shall meet the accounting 
requirements of the Manual for Accounts  issued by the Department of Health. Consequently, the following financial 
statements have been prepared in accordance with the Manual for Accounts 2015-16  issued by the Department of Health. 
The accounting policies contained in the Manual for Accounts  follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent 
that they are meaningful and appropriate to clinical commissioning groups, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised 
by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  Where the Manual for Accounts  permits a choice of accounting policy, the 
accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the clinical commissioning group 
for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted by the clinical commissioning 

1.1 Going concern
These accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis despite the issue of a report to the Secretary of State for 
Health under Section 30 of the Local  Audit and Accountability Act 2014.
Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the provision of a service in the future is 
anticipated, as evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that service in published documents.
Where a clinical commissioning group ceases to exist, it considers whether or not its services will continue to be provided 
(using the same assets, by another public sector entity) in determining whether to use the concept of going concern for the 
final set of financial statements.  If services will continue to be provided the financial statements are prepared on the going 

1.2 Accounting convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, 
plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

1.3 Pooled Budgets
Where the Clinical Commissioning Group has entered into a pooled budget arrangement under Section 75 of the National 
Health Service Act 2006 the Clinical Commissioning Group accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, income and 
expenditure arising from the activities of the pooled budget, identified in accordance with the pooled budget agreement.
Joint operations are arrangements where contractual agreements are in place under which the Clinical Commissioning Group
and one or more other parties share control. Joint ventures have rights to assets and obligations in relation to liabilities. The 
Clinical Commissioning Group accounts only for its share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the arrangement.

1.4 Critical Accounting Judgements & Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
In the application of the clinical commissioning group’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered 
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually 
reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

1.4.1 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policiesg j g p g ( ) g
the process of applying the clinical commissioning group’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements:
· Determining whether income and expenditure should be disclosed as either administrative or programme expenditure;
· Determining whether a substantial transfer of risks and rewards has occurred in relation to leased assets; and,
· Determining whether a provision or contingent liability should be recognised in respect of certain potential future obligations, 
particularly in respect of continuing healthcare services.

1.4.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The following are the key estimations that management has made in the process of applying the clinical commissioning 
group’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The 
main estimate in 2015/16 related to prescribing expenditure.

1.5 Revenue
Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is measured at 
the fair value of the consideration receivable.
Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following year, that income is deferred.

1.6 Employee Benefits
1.6.1 Short-term Employee Benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received from 
employees, including bonuses earned but not yet taken.
The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the 
extent that employees are permitted to carry forward leave into the following period.

1.6.2 Retirement Benefit Costs
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Notes to the financial statements

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded, 
defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the 
Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to 
identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a 
defined contribution scheme: the cost to the clinical commissioning group of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to 
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full 
amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the clinical commissioning group commits 
itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment.p y p p
scheme. The scheme assets and liabilities attributable to those employees can be identified and are recognised in the clinical 
commissioning group’s accounts. The assets are measured at fair value and the liabilities at the present value of the future 
obligations. The increase in the liability arising from pensionable service earned during the year is recognised within operating 
expenses. The expected gain during the year from scheme assets is recognised within finance income. The interest cost 
during the year arising from the unwinding of the discount on the scheme liabilities is recognised within finance costs. 
Actuarial gains and losses during the year are recognised in the General Reserve and reported as an item of other 

1.7 Other Expenses
Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are 
measured at the fair value of the consideration payable.
Expenses and liabilities in respect of grants are recognised when the clinical commissioning group has a present legal or 
constructive obligation, which occurs when all of the conditions attached to the payment have been met.
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Notes to the financial statements

1.8 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the 
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

1.8.1 The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessee
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, 
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. 
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant 
rate on interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in calculating the clinical 
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are 
recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually assessed as to 
whether they are operating or finance leases.

1.8.2 The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the clinical commissioning 
group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant 
periodic rate of return on the clinical commissioning group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Initial direct costs 
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised 

1.9 Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. 
Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible 
to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand 
and that form an integral part of the clinical commissioning group’s cash management.

1.10 Clinical Negligence Costs
The NHS Litigation Authority operates a risk pooling scheme under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual 
contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority which in return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to 
expenditure. Although the NHS Litigation Authority is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal 

1.11 Non-clinical Risk Pooling
The clinical commissioning group participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. 
Both are risk pooling schemes under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation 
Authority and, in return, receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any 
excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due.

1.12 Continuing healthcare risk pooling
In 2014-15 a risk pool scheme was introduced by NHS England for continuing healthcare claims, for claim periods prior to 31 
March 2013.  Under the scheme clinical commissioning group contribute annually to a pooled fund, which is used to settle the 

1.13 Financial Assets
Financial assets are recognised when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, 
in the case of trade receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when 
the contractual rights have expired or the asset has been transferred.
Financial assets are classified into the following categories:
·                Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss;
·                Held to maturity investments;
·                Available for sale financial assets; and,
·                Loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial 

1.13.1 Loans & Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in an 
active market. After initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any 
impairment.  Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.
Fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices where possible, otherwise by valuation techniques.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the 
financial asset, to the initial fair value of the financial asset.
At the end of the reporting period, the clinical commissioning group assesses whether any financial assets, other than those 
held at ‘fair value through profit and loss’ are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and impairment losses recognised if 
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the 
asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset.
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Notes to the financial statements

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective 
interest rate. The loss is recognised in expenditure and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through a provision for 
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through 
expenditure to the extent that the carrying amount of the receivable at the date of the impairment is reversed does not exceed 
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

1.14 Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the clinical commissioning group becomes party 
to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have 
been received. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid 

1.15 Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the clinical commissioning group are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not 
apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or 
included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the 

8
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Notes to the financial statements

1.16 Losses & Special Payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health 
service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special 
control procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way
Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including 
losses which would have been made good through insurance cover had the clinical commissioning group not been bearing its 
own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue expenditure).

1.17 Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted
The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 
2015-16, all of which are subject to consultation:
·                IFRS 9: Financial Instruments
·                IFRS 14: Regulatory Deferral Accounts
·                IFRS 15: Revenue for Contract with Customers
The application of the Standards as revised would not have a material impact on the accounts for 2015-16, were they applied 
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2 Other Operating Revenue
2015-16 2015-16 2015-16 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15

Total Admin Programme Total Admin Programme

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Charitable and other contributions  to revenue expenditure: non-NHS 78 13 65 0 0 0
Non-patient care services to other bodies 8 4 4 28 28 0
Other revenue 213 4 209 26 26 0
Total other operating revenue 299 21 278 54 54 0

3 Revenue
2015-16 2015-16 2015-16 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15

Total Admin Programme Total Admin Programme
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

From rendering of services 299 21 278 54 54 0
Total 299 21 278 54 54 0

Cash received from NHS England is drawn down directly into the bank account of the clinical commissioning group 
and credited to the General Fund, except for £213k of revenue which is included in the note above.
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4. Employee benefits and staff numbers

4.1 Employee benefits 2015-16

Total
Permanent 
Employees Other Total

Permanent 
Employees Other Total

Permanent 
Employees Other

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Employee Benefits
Salaries and wages 2,962 1,740 1,222 2,524 1,469 1,055 438 271 167
Social security costs 158 158 0 133 133 0 25 25 0
Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 219 219 0 182 182 0 37 37 0
Termination benefits 48 48 0 48 48 0 0 0 0
Gross employee benefits expenditure 3,387 2,165 1,222 2,887 1,832 1,055 500 333 167

2014-15

Total
Permanent 
Employees Other Total

Permanent 
Employees Other Total

Permanent 
Employees Other

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Employee Benefits
Salaries and wages 1,959 1,636 323 1,959 1,636 323 0 0 0
Social security costs 129 129 0 129 129 0 0 0 0
Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 177 177 0 177 177 0 0 0 0
Gross employee benefits expenditure 2,265 1,942 323 2,265 1,942 323 0 0 0

In accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits, £14k has been included in staff salaries for annual leave accrued but not taken at 31 March 2016.  
This Accrual includes an amount for employer's pension contributions.
Information relating to senior staff salaries and other benefits in kind is disclosed within the Remuneration Report on page 60 of the Annual Report.

4.1.1 Recoveries in respect of employee benefits

The clinical commissioning group had no recoveries in respect of employee benefits for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

Admin ProgrammeTotal

Total Admin Programme
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4.2 Average number of people employed
2014-15

Total
Permanently 

employed Other Total
Permanently 

employed Other
Number Number Number Number Number Number

Total 35 32 3 34 30 4

Of the above:
Number of whole time equivalent people 
engaged on capital projects 0 0 0 0 0 0

4.3  Staff sickness absence and ill health retirements
2015-16 2014-15
Number Number

Total Days Lost 300 320
Total Staff Years 36 35
Average working Days Lost 8.3 9.1

Sickness reporting in 2015/16 and 2014/15 is based upon 12 months data from January to December. 

There were no ill health retirements for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

4.4 Exit packages agreed in the financial year

Number £ Number £ Number £
Less than £10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£10,001 to £25,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£25,001 to £50,000 0 0 1 48,042 1 48,042
£50,001 to £100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£100,001 to £150,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
£150,001 to £200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
Over £200,001 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 1 48,042 1 48,042

There were no exit packages for the year ending 31 March 2015.

Analysis of Other Agreed Departures

Number £ Number £
Contractual payments in lieu of notice 1 48,042 0 0
Total 1 48,042 0 0

4.5 Pension costs

4.5.1 Full actuarial (funding) valuation

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme. Details of the benefits payable under these provisions can be found 
on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/Pensions.
The Scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the 
Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The Scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the 
underlying scheme assets and liabilities.
Therefore, the Scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the clinical commissioning group of participating in the 
Scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the Scheme for the accounting period.
The Scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years (until 2004, every five years) and an accounting valuation every year. An outline of these 
follows:

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the Scheme (taking into account its recent demographic 
experience), and to recommend the contribution rates to be paid by employers and scheme members. The last such valuation, which determined current 
contribution rates was undertaken as at 31 March 2012 and covered the period from 1 April 2008 to that date. Details can be found on the pension scheme 
website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. 
For 2015-16, employers’ contributions of £219,105 were payable to the NHS Pensions Scheme (2014-15: £176,998) were payable to the NHS Pension 
Scheme at the rate of 14.3% of pensionable pay.  The scheme’s actuary reviews employer contributions, usually every four years and now based on HMT 
Valuation Directions, following a full scheme valuation.  The latest review used data from 31st March 2012  and was published on the Government website 
on 9th June 2014. 

2015-16

2015-16 2015-16 2015-16

Other agreed departures

Compulsory redundancies Other agreed departures Total

Exit costs are accounted for in accordance with relevant accounting standards and at the latest in full in the year of departure.

The Remuneration Report includes the disclosure of exit payments payable to individuals named in that Report.

2015-16 2014-15
Other agreed departures

12



NHS North Tyneside CCG - Annual Accounts 2015-16

5. Operating expenses
2015-16 2015-16 2015-16 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15

Total Admin Programme Total Admin Programme
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Gross employee benefits
Employee benefits excluding governing body members 2,151 1,651 500 1,610 1,610 0
Executive governing body members 1,236 1,236 0 655 655 0
Total gross employee benefits 3,387 2,887 500 2,265 2,265 0

Other costs
Services from other CCGs and NHS England 3,423 2,031 1,392 2,778 1810 968
Services from foundation trusts 226,190 54 226,136 222,732 54 222,678
Services from other NHS trusts 236 0 236 247 0 247
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies 46,385 0 46,385 38,844 0 38,844
Chair and Non Executive Members 137 137 0 122 122 0
Supplies and services – clinical 3 0 3 0 0 0
Supplies and services – general 27 8 19 459 324 135
Consultancy services 56 56 0 354 354 0
Establishment 141 108 33 50 50 0
Transport 8 7 1 14 14 0
Premises 221 180 41 872 136 736
Impairments and reversals of receivables 1,178 0 1,178 0 0 0
Audit fees 63 63 0 84 84 0
Prescribing costs 38,254 0 38,254 37,032 0 37,032
Pharmaceutical services 133 0 133 138 0 138
GPMS/APMS and PCTMS 75 0 75 711 0 711
Other professional fees excl. audit 53 53 0 10 10 0
Clinical negligence 5 5 0 5 5 0
Education and training 6 6 0 45 45 0
CHC Risk Pool contributions 817 0 817 422 0 422
Total other costs 317,411 2,708 314,703 304,919 3,008 301,911

Total operating expenses 320,798 5,595 315,203 307,184 5,273 301,911

 Admin expenditure is expenditure incurred that is not a direct payment for the provision of healthcare or healthcare services.

The external auditor of the CCG is Mazars LLP. The audit fee for 2015/16 including VAT, was £63k. 
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6. Better Payment Practice Code

Measure of compliance 2015-16 2015-16 2014-15 2014-15
Number £000 Number £000

Non-NHS Payables
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 8,014 55,055 7,726 33,840
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 7,871 54,439 7,508 33,005
Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 98.22% 98.88% 97.18% 97.53%

NHS Payables
Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year 1,513 228,990 1,742 231,685
Total NHS rrade invoices paid within target 1,499 228,524 1,696 231,442
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target 99.07% 99.80% 97.36% 99.90%

6.1 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998
The clinical commissioning group does not have any expense arising from legislation in the late payment of Commercial Debt Act 1998 as 
at 31st March 2016.

7 Income Generation Activities
The clinical commissioning group does not undertake any income generation activities.

8. Investment revenue
The clinical commissioning group had no investment revenue for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

9. Other gains and losses
The clinical commissioning group had no other gains and losses for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

10. Finance costs
The clinical commissioning group had no finance costs for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the CCG to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 
days of receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later.
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11. Net gain/(loss) on transfer by absorption

The clinical commissioning group had no net gain/(loss) on transfer by absorption for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

12. Operating Leases

12.1 As lessee
12.1.1 Payments recognised as an Expense

Land Buildings Other Total Land Buildings Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Payments recognised as an expense
Minimum lease payments 0 177 9 186 0 130 2 132
Total 0 177 9 186 0 130 2 132

12.1.2 Future minimum lease payments
Land Buildings Other Total Land Buildings Other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Payable:
No later than one year 0 0 5 5 0 0 1                   1
Between one and five years 0 0 1 1 0 0 1                   1
Total 0 0 6 6 0 0 2 2

12.2 As lessor

12.2.1 Rental revenue
The clinical commissioning group had no rental revenue as a lessor for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

12.2.2 Future minimum rental value
The clinical commissioning group had no future minimum rental values as a lessor for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

Whilst our arrangements with Community Health Partnership's Limited and NHS Property Services Limited fall within the definition of operating leases, rental charge for future years has 
not yet been agreed . Consequently this note does not include future minimum lease payments for these arrangements.

2015-16 2014-15

2015-16 2014-15
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13 Property, plant and equipment

The clinical commissioning group had no property, plant and equipment for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

13.1 Additions to assets under construction
The clinical commissioning group had no assets under construction for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

13.2 Donated assets
The clinical commissioning group had no donated assets for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

13.3 Government granted assets
The clinical commissioning group had no Government granted assets for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

13.4 Property revaluation
The clinical commissioning group had no property revaluations for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

13.5 Compensation from third parties

and 31 March 2015.

13.6 Write downs to recoverable amount

and 31 March 2015.

13.7 Temporarily idle assets

13.8 Cost or valuation of fully depreciated assets

The clinical commissioning group received no compensation in relation to assets from third parties for year ending 31 March 2016 

The clinical commissioning group had no assets written down to recoverable amount for the year ending 31 March 2016

The clinical commissioning group had no assets that were temporary idle for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

The clinical commissioning group had no fully depreciated assets for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.
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14 Intangible non-current assets

14.1 Donated assets
The clinical commissioning group had no donated intangible assets as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

14.2 Government granted assets
The clinical commissioning group had no Government granted intangible assets as at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

14.3 Revaluation
The clinical commissioning group had no intangible assets to revalue for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

14.4 Compensation from third parties

ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

14.5 Write downs to recoverable amount

31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

14.6 Non-capitalised assets

14.7 Temporarily idle assets

and 31 March 2015.

14.8 Cost or valuation of fully amortised assets

15. Investment property

31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

16. Inventories

The clinical commissioning group had no intangible assets for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

The clinical commissioning group held no inventories for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

The clinical commissioning group had no investment property and made no investment transactions for the year ending 

The clinical commissioning group received no compensation in relation to intangible assets from third parties for the year 

The clinical commissioning group had no intangible assets written down to recoverable amount for the year ending 

The clinical commissioning group had no non-capitalised assets for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

The clinical commissioning group had no intangible assets that were temporary idle for the year ending 31 March 2016 

The clinical commissioning group had no fully amortised intangible assets for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.
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17  Trade and other receivables Current Non-current Current Non-current
2015-16 2015-16 2014-15 2014-15

£000 £000 £000 £000

NHS receivables: Revenue 2,601 0 436 0
NHS prepayments 494 0 1,048 0
NHS accrued income 12 0 2,053 0
Non-NHS receivables: Revenue 272 0 2,214 0
Non-NHS prepayments 25 0 26 0
Non-NHS accrued income 28 0 0 0
Provision for the impairment of receivables (94) 0 0 0
VAT 34 0 14 0
Total Trade & other receivables 3,372 0 5,791 0

Total current and non current 3,372 5,791

Included above:
Prepaid pensions contributions 0 0

The great majority of trade is with NHS England. As NHS England is funded by Government to provide funding to
 clinical commissioning groups to commission services, no credit scoring of them is considered necessary.

17.1 Receivables past their due date but not impaired 2015-16 2014-15
£000 £000

By up to three months 160 1,320
By three to six months 0 31
By more than six months 274 711
Total 434 2,062

£147k of the amount above has subsequently been recovered post the statement of financial position date.

17.2  Provision for impairment of receivables

18 Other financial assets

19 Other current assets

31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015. This includes all other current, non-current and capital financial assets.

The clinical commissioning group had no other current assets held outside the statement of financial position for the year ending 

The clinical commissioning group had no other financial assets held outside the statement of financial position for the year ending
31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015. This includes all other current, non-current and capital financial assets.

The clinical commissioning group had no other financial assets held outside the statement of financial position for the year ending
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20 Cash and cash equivalents

2015-16 2014-15
£000 £000

Balance at 1 April 109 53
Net change in year (19) 56
Balance at 31 March 90 109

Made up of:
Cash with the Government Banking Service 90 109
Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 90 109

Balance at 31 March 90 109

21. Non-current assets held for sale

The clinical commissioning group had no non-current assets held for sale for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

22. Analysis of impairments and reversals

No patients’ money was held by the clinical commissioning group as at 31 March 2016.

The clinical commissioning group had no impairments or reversals for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.
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Current Non-current Current Non-current
2015-16 2015-16 2014-15 2014-15

£000 £000 £000 £000

NHS payables: revenue 1,112 0 272 0
NHS accruals 2,913 0 3,075 0
Non-NHS payables: revenue 3,338 0 6,685 0
Non-NHS accruals 11,025 0 11,846 0
Social security costs 25 0 20 0
Tax 30 0 25 0
Other payables 67 0 72 0
Total Trade & Other Payables 18,510 0 21,995 0

Total current and non-current 18,510 21,995

24 Other financial liabilities

The clinical commissioning group had no other financial liabilities for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

25 Other liabilities

The clinical commissioning group had no other liabilities for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

The clinical commissioning group had no borrowings for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, 
therefore there are no repayment due dates to report.

27. Private finance initiative, LIFT and other service concession arrangements

The clinical commissioning group had no PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangements for the years ending 31 March 
2016 and 31 March 2015. This includes any payments on or off the statement of financial position and imputed finance leases.

28. Finance lease obligations

The clinical commissioning group had no finance lease obligations for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

29. Finance lease receivables

The clinical commissioning group had no finance lease receivables for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

29.1 Finance leases as lessor
The clinical commissioning group had no finance leases as lessor for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

29.2 Rental revenue
The clinical commissioning group had no rental revenue for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

Other payables include £38k outstanding pension contributions at 31 March 2016.

23 Trade and other payables

26 Borrowings
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30   Provisions

The clinical commissioning group had no provisions to report in their statement of financial position for the year ending 31 March 2016
and 31 March 2015.

NHS England are responsible for the payment of liabilities relating to Continuing Healthcare cases relating to the period before establishment 
of the clinical commissioning group. The total value of 'legacy' continuing healthcare provisions carried by NHS England relating to the CCG 
is £2,360k as at 31 March 2016 (£3,016k as at 31 March 2015).

31. Contingencies

The clinical commissioning group had no contingencies for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

32. Commitments

The clinical commissioning group had no capital commitments or other financial commitments for the year ending 31 March 2016
and 31 March 2015.

33. Financial instruments

33.1 Financial risk management

33.1.1 Currency risk

33.1.2 Interest rate risk

33.1.3 Credit risk

33.1.4 Liquidity risk
NHS Clinical Commissioning Group is required to operate within revenue and capital resource limits, which are financed from resources 
voted annually by Parliament. The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group draws down cash to cover expenditure, as the need arises. The 
NHS Clinical Commissioning Group is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or 
Because NHS Clinical Commissioning Group is financed through parliamentary funding, it is not exposed to the degree of financial risk
faced by business entities. Also, financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of 
listed companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The clinical commissioning group has limited powers to 
borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being 
held to change the risks facing the clinical commissioning group in undertaking its activities.
Treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the NHS Clinical 
Commissioning Group standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the Governing Body. Treasury activity is subject to review 
by the NHS Clinical Commissioning Group and internal auditors.

The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and 
liabilities being in the UK and sterling based. The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group has no overseas operations. The NHS Clinical 
Commissioning Group and therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.

The Clinical Commissioning Group borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by NHS 
England. The borrowings are for 1 to 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans
Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan. The clinical commissioning group therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

Because the majority of the NHS Clinical Commissioning Group and revenue comes parliamentary funding, NHS Clinical 
Commissioning Group has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at the end of the financial year are in receivables 
from customers, as disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.
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33 Financial instruments cont'd

33.2 Financial assets

Loans and 
Receivables Total

2015-16 2015-16
£000 £000

Receivables:
·          NHS 2,613 2,613
·          Non-NHS 300 300
Cash at bank and in hand 90 90
Total at 31-March-2016 3,003 3,003

Loans and 
Receivables Total

2014-15 2014-15
£000 £000

Receivables:
·          NHS 436 436
·          Non-NHS 2,214 2,214
Cash at bank and in hand 109 109
Total at 31-March-2015 2,759 2,759

33.3 Financial liabilities

Other Total
2015-16 2015-16

£000 £000

Payables:
·          NHS 4,025 4,025
·          Non-NHS 14,430 14,430
Total at 31-March-2016 18,455 18,455

Other Total
2014-15 2014-15

£000 £000

Payables:
·          NHS 3,347 3,347
·          Non-NHS 18,603 18,603
Total at 31-March-2015 21,950 21,950

34 Operating segments

The clinical commissioning group consider they have only one segment: commissioning of healthcare services.
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35 Pooled budgets

2015-16 2014-15
£000 £000

Income 0 0
Expenditure 12,233 1,006

36 NHS Lift investments
The clinical commissioning group had no NHS Lift Investments for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

Under s75 of the 2006 NHS Act, the clinical commissioning group has entered into a pooled budget agreement with 
North Tyneside Council in relation to the Better Care Fund. For accounting purposes management has assessed that 
joint control does not exist.

The NHS clinical commissioning group's share of the income and expenditure handled by the pooled budget in the 
financial year were:
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37 Related party transactions

Payments 
to Related 

Party

Receipts 
from 

Related 
Party

Amounts 
owed to 
Related 
Party

Amounts 
due from 
Related 
Party

Payments to 
Related 
Party

Receipts 
from Related 

Party

Amounts 
owed to 
Related 
Party

Amounts 
due from 
Related 
Party

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

49 Marine Avenue Surgery 31 0 0 0 51 0 0 0

Appleby Surgery 32 0 0 0 39 0 0 0

Battle Hill Health Centre 12 0 0 0 16 0 0 0

Beaumont Park Medical Group 17 0 0 0 44 0 0 0

Bewicke Medical Centre 42 0 0 0 54 0 0 0

Collingwood Health Group 68 0 0 0 104 0 0 0

Earsdon Park Medical Practice 16 0 1 0 62 0 0 0

Forest Hall Medical Group 31 0 0 0 45 0 0 0

Garden Park Surgery 31 0 0 0 102 0 0 0

Lane End Surgery 61 0 0 0 40 0 0 0

Mallard Medical Group 12 0 0 0 27 0 0 0

Marine Avenue Medical Centre 32 0 0 0 55 0 0 0

Monkseaton Medical Centre 39 0 0 0 11 0 0 0

Nelson Medical Group 40 0 0 0 26 0 0 0

Northumberland Park Medical Group 30 0 0 0 19 0 0 0

Park Parade Surgery 20 0 0 0 34 0 0 0

Park Road Medical Practice 46 0 0 0 121 0 0 0

Portugal Place Health Centre 78 0 0 0 163 0 0 0

Priory Medical Group 47 0 2 0 107 0 0 0

Redburn Park Medical Centre 14 0 0 0 21 0 0 0

Shiremoor Medical Group 14 0 0 2 25 0 0 0

Spring Terrace Health Centre 43 0 0 0 74 0 0 0

Swarland Avenue Surgery 23 0 0 0 25 0 0 0

The Village Green Surgery 67 0 0 0 138 0 0 0

Wellspring Medical Practice 16 0 0 0 36 0 0 0

West Farm Surgery 17 0 0 0 33 0 0 0

Whitley Bay Health Centre 78 0 0 0 89 0 0 0

Wideopen Medical Centre 31 0 0 0 48 0 0 0

Woodlands Park Health Centre 110 0 0 0 166 0 0 0

Members of the North Tyneside GP Practices have carried out functions for the clinical commissioning group and any remuneration received for these has been paid
to the practice in recognition of their contribution.  GP Practices are also entitled to additional payments in relation to extra services for patients and these are
based on practice sizes and if the practice has delivered each service.

Payments 
to Related 

Party

Receipts 
from 

Related 
Party

Amounts 
owed to 
Related 
Party

Amounts 
due from 
Related 
Party

Payments to 
Related 
Party

Receipts 
from Related 

Party

Amounts 
owed to 
Related 
Party

Amounts 
due from 
Related 
Party

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
• Northumbria Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust 127,502 67 0 2,170 134,355 0 0 0
• Newcastle upon Tyne Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 61,608 54 1,375 0 64,062 0 0 0
• Northumberland, Tyne & Wear NHS Foundation rust 18,088 0 21 0 22,022 0 0 0
• North East Ambulance Service. 7,702 0 6 0 7,698 0 0 0

The clinical commissioning group also had a number of transactions with NHS England, NHS Litigation Authority and NHS Business Services Authority amongst others.
The transactions with these entities were not material.

The clinical commissioning group has not received revenue or capital payments from charitable funds.

The clinical commissioning group maintains a formal register of interests which is referred to at each of its Council of Practice meetings, Governing Body and Committee 
meetings, providing a mechanism for handling any conflicts of interest.

In addition, the clinical commissioning group has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government 
bodies. Most of these transactions have been with North Tyneside Council in respect of joint enterprises (£16.5m).

TyneHealth Ltd is a provider of healthcare services. Its members are the 29 GP Practices in North Tyneside. There was £711k paid to it in 2015/16 (£511k in 2014/15).

Details of related party transactions with individuals for 2015-16 and 2014-15 are as follows:

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year the clinical commissioning group has had a significant number of 
material transactions with entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department. For example:

2015-16 2014-15

2015-16 2014-15

The clinical commissioning group engaged several contractors in an interim capacity, who held or have held office as a senior manager in 2015/16. 
These were Hertford Partners Ltd (£261k), D Hayman Associates Ltd (£131k) and Haku Consultancy Ltd (£68k).
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38 Events after the end of the reporting period

There are no post balance sheet events which will have a material effect on the financial instruments of the clinical commissioning 

39 Losses and special payments

39.1 Losses

Total 
Number of 

Cases
Total Value 

of Cases
Total Number 

of Cases
Total Value of 

Cases
2015-16 2015-16 2014-15 2014-15
Number £'000 Number £'000

Administrative write-offs 10 1,178 0 0
Total 10 1,178 0 0

Included within the administrative write-offs figure above is 1 case amounting to  £1,084k that has been written off as approved by 
the audit committee. The other 9 cases amounting to £94k have been provided for within the 2015 -16 accounts but not written off, 
as the CCG are continuing to pursue these debts.

39.2 Special payments

There were no special payments for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

40 Third party assets

The clinical commissioning group held no third party assets off their statement of financial position for the year ending 
31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

group or consolidated group.

The total number of NHS Clinical Commissioning Group losses and special payments cases, and their total value, was as follows:
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41 Financial performance targets

The clinical commissioning group have a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended).

The clinical commissioning group performance against those duties was as follows:

2015-16 2015-16 2015-16
£'000 £'000 £'000

National Health 
Service Act Section Duty Target Performance Total

Duty 
Achieved

223H(1) Expenditure not to exceed income 301,217 320,499 (19,282) No

223I(2)
Capital resource use does not exceed the amount 
specified in Directions 0 0 0 Yes

223I(3)
Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount 
specified in Directions 301,217 320,499 (19,282) No

223J(1)
Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not 
exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 0 Yes

223J(2)
Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does 
not exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 0 Yes

223J(3)
Revenue administration resource use does not 
exceed the amount specified in Directions 4,724 5,574 (850) No

2014-15 2014-15 2014-15
£'000 £'000 £'000

National Health 
Service Act Section Duty Target Performance Total Duty Achieved

223H(1) Expenditure not to exceed income 300,701 307,130 (6,429) No

223I(2)
Capital resource use does not exceed the amount 
specified in Directions 0 0 0 Yes

223I(3)
Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount 
specified in Directions 300,701 307,130 (6,429) No

223J(1)
Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not 
exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 0 Yes

223J(2)
Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does 
not exceed the amount specified in Directions 0 0 0 Yes

223J(3)
Revenue administration resource use does not 
exceed the amount specified in Directions 5,915 5,220 695 Yes

42 Impact of IFRS

43 Analysis of charitable reserves

The clinical commissioning group had no charitable reserves for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015.

There was no impact of IFRS on the clinical commissioning group in 2015-16 or 2014-15.

26


	REPORT - NHS North Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group annual report and accounts 201516
	Contents
	1. Performance report
	1.1. Overview
	1.1.1. Statement from the Clinical Chair and Interim Chief Officer
	1.1.2. About NHS North Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group
	1.1.3. Overview of North Tyneside
	1.1.4. Commissioning priorities for 2015/16
	1.1.5. Financial recovery
	1.1.6. Urgent healthcare delivery
	1.1.7. North Tyneside Care Plus
	1.1.8. Transforming care for people with learning disabilities
	1.1.9. Primary care co-commissioning and working with GP practices
	1.1.9.1. Development of the GP primary care strategy
	1.1.9.2. Primary care support
	1.1.9.3. Innovation in GP practices

	1.1.10. Tackling winter pressures
	1.1.11. Public engagement
	1.1.11.1. Patient forum

	1.1.12. Working with partners
	1.1.13. Key issues and risks

	1.2. Performance summary
	1.3. Performance analysis
	1.3.1. Performance measures
	1.3.1.1. Financial performance
	1.3.1.2. CCG performance against national standards
	Delivering against the NHS Constitution
	Delivering against the NHS Outcomes Framework
	CCG performance: Quality Premium 2015/16
	Better Care Fund (BCF)


	1.3.2. Sustainable development
	1.3.2.1. Policies for sustainability
	1.3.2.2. Partnerships for sustainability
	1.3.2.3. Performance on sustainability
	Travel
	Energy
	Confidential waste
	Water


	1.3.3. Patient and public involvement
	1.3.4. Reducing inequality
	1.3.4.1. Planning and commissioning services to improve health and wellbeing
	1.3.4.2. Engagement and partnership working
	1.3.4.3. Accessibility and communications
	1.3.4.4. Accessible Information Standard
	1.3.4.5. Governance
	1.3.4.6. Equality Impact Assessment
	1.3.4.7. The Equality Delivery System 2 (EDS2)
	1.3.4.8. Workforce Race Equality Standard (WRES)
	1.3.4.9. Equal opportunities for staff



	2. Accountability report
	2.1. Corporate Governance report
	2.1.1. Members’ report
	2.1.1.1. Member practices
	2.1.1.2. The Clinical Chair of the CCG
	2.1.1.3. The CCG Chief Officer
	2.1.1.4. The CCG Council of Practices
	2.1.1.5. The CCG Governing Body
	2.1.1.6. Membership of the CCG Audit Committee
	2.1.1.7. The Clinical Executive Committee
	2.1.1.8. Registers of Interest
	2.1.1.9. Relevant discloses for 2015/16
	2.1.1.10. External audit
	2.1.1.11. Disclosure of ‘serious untoward incidents’
	2.1.1.12. Statement as to disclosure to auditors

	2.1.2. Statement of Accountable Officer’s responsibilities
	2.1.3. Governance statement
	2.1.3.1. Introduction and context
	2.1.3.2. Scope of responsibility
	2.1.3.3. Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
	2.1.3.4. The Clinical Commissioning Group Governance Framework
	 CCG Constitution
	 Council of Practices
	 Clinical Executive Committee
	 CCG Governing Body
	 Audit Committee
	  Remuneration Committee
	 Quality and Safety Committee
	 Patient Forum
	 Finance Committee
	 Primary Care Committee
	 Attendance records for CCG Governing Body and committees
	 Conclusion of the review of the Governance Framework
	2.1.3.5. The Clinical Commissioning Group Risk Management Framework
	 Embedding risk management
	 CCG risk management policy
	 Risk identification
	 Risk appetite
	2.1.3.5.1 Risk Assessment
	 Risk grading and risk registers
	 Risk Assurance Framework
	 Working with stakeholders and partners
	 Counter fraud culture

	2.1.3.6. The Clinical Commissioning Group Internal Control Framework
	 Internal audit service
	 Assurances from outsourced support services
	 Policies

	2.1.3.6.1 Information Governance
	2.1.3.6.2 Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources
	 Duty to ensure expenditure does not exceed income
	2.1.3.7 Review of the effectiveness of Governance, Risk Management and Internal Control
	2.1.3.7.1 Capacity to Handle Risk
	2.1.3.7.2 Review of Effectiveness
	2.1.3.7.3 Head of Internal Audit Opinion
	 2015/16 Internal audit reports
	2.1.3.7.4 Data Quality
	2.1.3.7.5 Business Critical Models
	2.1.3.7.6 Data Security
	2.1.3.7.7 Discharge of Statutory Functions
	 NHS England Assurance Framework
	 Section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014

	2.1.3.7.8 Conclusion


	2.2. Remuneration and staff report
	2.2.1. Remuneration policy
	2.2.2. Remuneration report tables
	2.2.3. Pensions entitlement table
	2.2.4. Compensation on early retirement or for loss of office
	2.2.5. Fair pay (ratios) disclosure
	2.2.6. Staff report


	3. Financial statements
	3.1. Independent auditor’s report to the Governing Body of NHS North Tyneside Clinical Commissioning Group
	3.2. Appendix one: full annual accounts


	99C_CCG_StatutoryAccounts_2015-16_M12_FINAL UNSIGNED

